
Starksboro Development Review Board Agenda 

Thursday, May 14, 2026 @ 6:30 pm. 

 

*TOWN CLERK’S OFFICE AND VIA ZOOM* 

 Instructions for remote participation below 

 

TIME TOPIC 

  

6:30 Meeting called to order 

Introductions, Review agenda for addition, removal, or adjustment of any items per 1 V.S.A. 

§312(d)(3)(A). 

 

6:33 Public Comment for non-agenda items only 

6:35 Review and approve any outstanding minutes 
 

6:40 26-DRB-02SD Boss-Kelly 2-lot subdivision Final Plan Review Hearing 

8:00 Deliberative Session. 

8:30 Adjournment 

        

 

The Town of Starksboro is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89617415124 

 

Meeting ID: 896 1741 5124 

 

Join by Phone: 

1-305-224-1968 

 

 

 



 

 Page 1 of 11 

 

 

Town of Starksboro 

Development Review Board 

Minutes (DRAFT) 

April 23, 2026 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Members Present: Ben Campbell, Evelyn Boardman, Rob Liotard, Tom Perry, Rich Warren 

Members Not Present: Luke McCarthy, Arnell Paquette 

Applicants Present: Alan Norris (via Zoom), Jason Barnard (via Zoom), Scott Baker 

Visitors: Cecilia Elwer (via Zoom), Dennis Casey, Jennifer Lovett, Chip Lovett 

Others Present:  Stephen Rooney, Zoning Administrator 

Minutes Prepared by: S.Rooney, draft revised 4/27/2026 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Meeting called to order by Chair Ben Campbell at 6:33 pm 

 

Changes to the Agenda: 

None 

 

Public Comment: None  

 

Amendment of 2/26/2026 Minutes 

 

Motion:   R.Liotard made a motion to amend the approved minutes from 2/26/2026-Boss Kelly 

Hearing to add the following paragraph under Testimony: 

“J.Barnard noted that Barnard & Gervais located the sand and gravel pit extents on the plan by 

surveying a couple of edges and by orthophoto tracing. 

J.Barnard confirmed B.Campbell’s stated assumption that they did not fully survey out the rim of 

the pit.” 

R.Warren seconded. 

Vote:  All in favor 

 

3/26/2026 Minutes Review: 

 

Motion: 

R.Liotard moved to accept the 3/26/2026 minutes  

E.Boardman seconded. 

Vote:  All in favor 

 

 

 



Town of Starksboro Development Review Board, Minutes of April 23, 2026, Meeting 

And Preliminary Plan Review Hearing for #26-DRB-01 PUD Norris 9 Lot Subdivision.   

 

 Page 2 of 11 

 

 

Hearing #26-DRB-01 PUD Norris 9 Lot Subdivision Preliminary Plan Review Hearing 

 

Chair B.Campbell opened the Hearing at 7:00pm 

 

Participants were introduced and Sign-in Sheet distributed. 

B.Campbell discussed visitor’s options to be considered interested parties. 

 

B.Campbell read the warning. 

 

B.Campbell asked if there were any conflicts of interest or Ex parte communications.  None were 

reported. 

 

B.Campbell swore in the applicant and visitors wishing to provide testimony. 

 

Testimony: 

 

S.Baker reviewed the following: 

The application, plans, project description, and read the narrative of review criteria along 

with the following topics: 

The issued VTrans access permit, and the process, the improvements to the line of sight. 

The agricultural soils, wetland bogs and flood areas, and the upland forest. 

 How the application responded to the ag soils section 354.C. 

 How the developed areas avoid the uplands forest per Section 354.D 

How the design avoids the wildlife habitat areas noted in the State Wildlife Habitat map 

by developing in the zone that is not identified as a rated wildlife habitat zone. 

 How the development is located as designed to avoid more sensitive zones.  

 How the site soils are ideal for wastewater systems and stormwater treatment. 

 

The following questions, comments, and testimony were provided during the reading of the 

review criteria: 

 

J.Barnard noted that the state wastewater permit has been received. 

 

R.Warren asked about the plan for the gravel pit located west of the gravel pit north of the 

development.  J.Barnard noted that this gravel pit has not been used for 30-40 years and is now a 

pond.  J.Lovett noted that it is now a beaver pond.  S.Baker and A.Norris clarified the northern 

gravel pit is the pit to be reclaimed and done during the development of the first couple of houses 

to use some of the excavated materials as reclamation materials.  R.Warren asked if the gravel pit 

would have any use afterwards.  S.Baker and A.Norris noted the pit would just be reclaimed and 

not have any further use as a pit. 

 

T.Perry  asked how the view from the road, which he noted as “pristine” would be affected by 

the development, as this is a scenic corridor.  S.Baker noted that rather than push the 

development back into the more sensitive forest areas, street trees would be added to the 



Town of Starksboro Development Review Board, Minutes of April 23, 2026, Meeting 

And Preliminary Plan Review Hearing for #26-DRB-01 PUD Norris 9 Lot Subdivision.   

 

 Page 3 of 11 

 

development road drive, not to “hide” the development, but to soften the facades, and to add 

vegetation, as there is currently little vegetation to retain in this area. 

 

R.Liotard asked if the soils that would be moved into the gravel pit would come out of the center 

shared lot.  S.Baker noted that no soils are planned to be moved from the center lot, but from 

Lots 1 and 2 where the houses will be set into the slopes. 

 

B.Campbell noted that there is a knoll north of Lots 1 and 2 that would be lowered to improve 

sight lines for VTrans.   

 

E.Boardman asked about the development of Lot 8, as VTrans has granted access to Lot 8.   

 

R.Liotard asked to confirm if the Lot 8 access drive will not be developed until the Lot is 

developed.   

 

S.Baker and J.Barnard noted that Vtrans wanted access addressed to Lot 8 at the same time, but 

that no development is currently proposed for Lot 8. 

 

T.Perry asked to confirm that Lot 8 might be developed in the future, but nothing is proposed 

now.  S.Baker agreed and noted the applicant considers the Lot a deferred use lot. 

 

B.Campbell asked visitors if they had any questions or comments. 

 

J. Lovett noted that the beaver pond in the wetland north of the meadow is an active beaver site, 

with a very old beaver dam, which was classified by the VT Fish and Wildlife Dept in 2018 as a 

high convservation priority.  She believes the pond is a Class I wetlands but noted it is not 

currently and the State is still in the process of updating their wetlands mapping.  She requested 

the DRB consider adding protection for the pond.  She described different flood events 

downstream from the pond, and expressed concern that if the dam were to fail that Rt. 17 and 

downstream properties would be in danger.  She noted that the pond also retained water when 

other water sources in the area dried up during the past drought and provided water for wildlife 

during this period.  She asked that the DRB consider expanding the 25ft buffer around this 

wetland and impose additional wildlife protections such as a ban on trapping or hunting around 

the pond to protect the beavers.  She noted the benefits of retaining the beaver population.  She 

noted that the field is a resting spot for migratory birds. 

 

J.Barnard noted that the buffer for the Class II wetlands is 60ft (50ft plus 10ft to structures).  He 

noted that the State wetland biologist Zapata Courage has been consulted and she has provided 

confirmation that a wetlands permit is not required for the project.  He noted that boulders will 

be located along the wetlands delineation to demark the edge. 

 

J.Lovett repeated her request to protect the beavers to avoid downstream flooding from a dam 

failure. 

 

S.Baker asked if beaver dams fail.  J.Lovett replied yes.  S.Baker asked what happens.  R.Warren 

noted that lots of water comes down.  J.Barnard noted that the beaver dam could fail with or 



Town of Starksboro Development Review Board, Minutes of April 23, 2026, Meeting 

And Preliminary Plan Review Hearing for #26-DRB-01 PUD Norris 9 Lot Subdivision.   

 

 Page 4 of 11 

 

without the development.  S.Baker expressed his opinion that removing the dam and lowering 

the water level to protect life and property should be given priority over the beavers.  J.Lovett 

noted that if water levels are dropped beavers will not return, and that a beaver deceiver should 

be used instead, so that the pond can still mitigate storm damage. 

 

B.Campbell then asked that S.Baker read thru the narrative responses to the review criteria. 

 

E.Boardman asked about the applicant’s request to modify the minimum lot size in Lot 6 to 2.16 

acreas as allowed by 358.D, as the minimum ASRR lot size per 252.B is ½ acre.  She asked if 

per 358.G the lots can only be 200% of the minimum lot size, how can the lots be greater than 

1acre?  S.Baker replied that he considered 358.G to apply to the minimum building envelope, 

and that the minimum lot size was actually ½ to 2 acres.  B.Campell asked S.Rooney to provide 

some guidance on the question.  S.Rooney read 358.G(1)(a), and noted that it states that it 

applies to the lot, not to the building envelope, and that the minimum lot size in the ASRR 

district is a range from ½ acre to 2 acres, so the largest lot size that can be allowed in a PUD in 

this district is 4acres.  Therefore the 2.16 acre modification request would not be necessary.  

S.Rooney noted that this 4acre maximum applied to all the lots in the PUD except as allowed by 

358.G(1)(3), which allows one residential lot to be associated with the open space if associated 

with working farm or forestland.  S.Rooney noted that in his opinion, Lots 1-7 appear to comply 

with 358.G(1)(a), and Lot 9 might comply with 358.G(3), but Lot 8 did not appear to comply 

with either. 

 

S.Baker replied that if 358.G(1)(a) applied to all the lots except the homestead lot, then many 

more lots would be needed, and if that were the case they might need to scrap the PUD approach, 

reduce Lot 6 to 2acres, and apply for a simple subdivision instead. 

 

S.Rooney noted that per the bylaws in the ASRR district, a subdivision of more than 5 lots is 

required to be a PUD. (S.Rooney note 4/26/2026: Section 254.A notes “more than 4 lots..”). 

 

S.Rooney described an example of a compliant scenario where Lot 8 was reduced to 4 acres and 

the remaining acreage devoted to Lot 9.  

 

S.Baker asked A.Norris about this scenario.  A.Norris was not in favor of reducing Lot 8, as the 

current parcel configuration fits around the pond and makes more sense to keep together in one 

parcel.  A.Norris asked why this was so complicated and asked if the Planning Commission had 

messed up here. 

 

J.Barnard noted that that this was part of the difficulty in designing a PUD in Starksboro, and 

wondered if it wasn’t the intent of a PUD to allow flexibility for some of these rules to 

potentially allow a waiver? 

 

B.Campbell noted that in his opinion the PUD otherwise seems well designed, but the DRB 

needed to consider the regulations and together with the applicant try to work out the issues. 

 

S.Baker agreed the applicant’s goal was to comply to the extent possible, and that maybe a 

waiver might be considered if it provided a better alternative to strict compliance. 



Town of Starksboro Development Review Board, Minutes of April 23, 2026, Meeting 

And Preliminary Plan Review Hearing for #26-DRB-01 PUD Norris 9 Lot Subdivision.   

 

 Page 5 of 11 

 

 

S.Rooney added that his suggestion was strictly an example, and that perhaps there was a way 

for a smaller Lot 8 to be granted access to the area devoted to Lot 9. 

 

S.Baker noted that they also did not want to create an extra lot as 10 lots would require an ACT 

250 review, so a reduced Lot 8 might be necessary. 

 

R.Liotard noted another example might be to merge Lot 8 and 9 for now to avoid the issue for 

now as no development is currently proposed. S.Baker asked A.Norris if that made sense, 

A.Norris noted that might need to be done, but he still thought the current configuration made 

more sense. 

 

B.Campbell noted that the application of the current regulations was complicating approval of 

the proposed lot layout, but as no future development was currently proposed on either lot, that 

an adjustment of Lot 8 and 9 into one lot might be necessary and the simplest way to allow the 

application to move forward.  A.Norris agreed and asked if that solved all the issues. 

 

T.Perry and S.Rooney commented that the board should not be holding the applicant to a specific 

solution at this time.  B.Campbell agreed but noted that the applicant did need to come up with a 

solution to meet the requirement of one large parcel with others under 4acres. 

 

S.Baker agreed and proposed that the hearing condition be worded to indicate the need for 

compliance without determining a solution.  A.Norris noted that he also did not want to spend 

more to redesign the solution if the board could see a way to approve the current design. 

 

T.Perry asked if further subdivision of the PUD is allowed.  S.Rooney noted that you can’t 

further subdivide the open space, but you can further subdivide what remains outside of that. 

 

T.Perry noted that he hoped whatever decision the board came to that it did not box the applicant 

or the board into a situation that couldn’t be resolved.  B.Campbell agreed that for any issues that 

are questionable the board’s conditions should simply require compliance to allow for resolution. 

 

J.Barnard noted that he did not believe that the regulations required the open space to be 60% of 

the entire parcel, as the language does not specifically say the entire parcel, even though that may 

be how it has been viewed, and that when he was on the planning commission he doesn’t believe 

that’s how the regulations were written.  

 

D.Casey stated that the PUD was not the entire parcel, only the land that is being used for the 

lots.  He said there is no way the Planning Commission wrote regulations that required that 60% 

of the total acreage parcel needed to be set-aside, and that was ludacrious and ridiculous, and that 

no one would do that.  He noted that might be the way S.Rooney interpreted it, but that was not 

the way it is.  He said he would need to understand the homestead lot rule better and wasn’t sure 

if A.Norris and J.Barnard were disputing S.Rooney’s interpretation of that as well.  

 

B.Campbell added that when D.Casey separates the term development from the PUD, that 

development as noted in the regulations is the entire parcel, and that’s what makes the issue 



Town of Starksboro Development Review Board, Minutes of April 23, 2026, Meeting 

And Preliminary Plan Review Hearing for #26-DRB-01 PUD Norris 9 Lot Subdivision.   

 

 Page 6 of 11 

 

ambiguous.  Dennis stated that was the way the board interpreted it, but that is not the way it is, 

and that’s not what it says in the regulations. 

 

S.Baker stated in his review of Section 350, he noted the term “subdivision” and “land 

development” being distinguished separately and not interchangeably even within the same 

paragraph and that he believes the term “development site” in Section 358.H(2) is meant to be 

interpreted differently than the entire parcel.  He cited 358.B where it is noted that land 

development within the PUD is distinguished separately from the entire PUD, and section 331.D 

where he believes “development site” does not refer to the entire subdivision.  He believes the 

regulations separate the concept of the area to be developed from the area to be subdivided, and 

that “development site” and “subdivision” are not use interchangeably in the regulations. 

 

B.Campbell asked if there were further board or visitor questions. 

 

R.Warren asked S.Rooney if there was a size restriction on the open space.  S.Rooney said no 

and noted that 358.G(3) states “one residential lot may be created as the “homestead lot” for the 

open space parcel.”  He noted that other than this lot, there is only one other lot size requirement 

described in Section 358.G.   

 

T.Perry asked for further clarification of the lot sizes in 358.G versus the standard ASRR lot 

sizes, and these sections were further discussed by the group. 

 

R.Liotard asked to clarify the applicant’s request for a modification of the 2 acre minimum lot 

size in the ASRR, and S.Rooney reiterated that in a PUD application the 2 acre ASRR is allowed 

to be increased to 4 acres so the modification request is unnecessary. 

 

S.Baker noted State Wetlands biologist Zapata Courage’s email noted that no wetlands permit 

was required.  S.Rooney noted that this email was not in the current exhibits and made a copy to 

insert into the exhibits. 

 

R.Warren asked about the number of building rights, S.Baker reviewed the building rights 

calculation included in the application and noted that this calculation provides evidence that the 

applicant is not trying to develop the total building rights allowed. 

 

T.Perry asked to clarify the district boundaries on the parcel; S.Baker reviewed these boundaries. 

 

B.Campbell asked about the status of the shared drive agreement.  S.Baker noted that per the 

regulations this would be provided for the final application. 

 

T.Perry asked for clarification on the term “simple disconnect” with respect to storm water 

management and the type of vegetation used in these areas. S.Baker and J.Barnard reviewed that 

compliance concept and the allowed vegetation versus constructed storm water management 

trenches, ponds, and other features.  

 

S.Baker noted that a stormwater management plan had been provided.  S.Rooney noted that this 

had been discussed prior to the hearing to comply with the regulations requirement that a plan be 



Town of Starksboro Development Review Board, Minutes of April 23, 2026, Meeting 

And Preliminary Plan Review Hearing for #26-DRB-01 PUD Norris 9 Lot Subdivision.   

 

 Page 7 of 11 

 

provided once the site exceeds 10,000sf of new impervious.  S.Baker and J.Barnard noted that 

the plan had been completed, but it may have been overlooked in transmittal and that would be 

confirmed and sent if not. 

 

R.Warren asked if street trees on the new drive would be located on the outside or inside of the 

curve.  S.Baker noted his preference of the inside of the curve, but that this would be looked at 

along with species and spacing. 

 

T.Perry asked how the applicant intended to develop the parcels.  A.Norris noted that most might 

be sold only as lots for owners to build as they wish, but he might also build one himself to sell.  

He might include some building design restrictions in the sale, or not. D.Casey asked if the 

regulations required the developer to disclose how the lots would be developed, and if the DRB 

could require the developer to sell them in some particular way. B.Campbell stated that was an 

extreme condition that he would not support. S.Rooney noted that the DRB could only add 

conditions that support the bylaws, and the bylaws do require the applicant to address phasing.  

T. Perry clarified that he asked the question to clarify why house details such as lighting were 

being discussed at this point when the land subdivision was the level of detail being currently 

reviewed.  R.Warren noted that lighting was required to be reviewed during this phase of 

development by the regulations.  There was general group concurrance that detailed house design 

was not under review in this process. 

 

E.Boardman asked if required 100ft road frontage also needed to be a modification request, 

based on the review comments by S.Rooney provided in the Exhibits. S.Rooney clarified that the 

discussion in the exhibits was in regards to road setbacks, and although this dimension was not 

consistently labelled, the setbacks appeared compliant and were confirmed by the applicant in 

their response.  S.Baker referred to the plans and confirmed the setbacks. 

 

T.Perry asked for clarification of monumentation, S.Baker provided technical definitions. 

 

S.Rooney noted that there are two lots without a building envelope required by Section 

358.G(1)(b), and that waivers have been granted by the DRB if no development is currently 

proposed on the lot.  S.Baker requested that the waivers be granted as part of the hearing, and 

noted that the restriction on development on these lots is also required in the state wastewater 

permit. 

 

J.Lovett asked about the process moving forward, and if people could still submit emails 

comments or questions.  S.Rooney described the process the DRB would follow to allow the 

applicant to file their final plan review application, and that further testimony is allowed. 

T.Perry noted that if folks had suggestions for improving the application it would be helpful to 

share them with the board.  J.Lovett asked for confirmation that the board was reviewing the 

written testimony received to date, and B.Campbell replied in the affirmative. 

 

E.Boardman asked about S.Rooney’s question to Barnard & Gervais in the exhibits regarding 

steep slopes on some of the lots and whether conditional use review would be required.  

J.Barnard noted that the preliminary grading indicated that some of the lots may require 

conditional review, but if this was found necessary after the actual house is designed, this would 



Town of Starksboro Development Review Board, Minutes of April 23, 2026, Meeting 

And Preliminary Plan Review Hearing for #26-DRB-01 PUD Norris 9 Lot Subdivision.   

 

 Page 8 of 11 

 

be done by the lot owner during the zoning permit review process.  S.Rooney agreed that this 

was the proper sequence of review. 

 

Motion: 

B.Campbell moved that the application materials be accepted as meeting the criteria under 

Section 427 and Section 358 appropriate to conduct the Conditional Use Review Hearing.    

S.Rooney provided clarification that this motion is not an approval of the application, only that 

the application is complete and appropriate for the hearing.  J.Barnard asked if the process was 

for the preliminary hearing to be closed and moved forward to final.  S.Rooney replied yes, the 

hearing would be closed like any other hearing.  R.Warren seconded the motion.  

Vote: All in favor. 

 

R.Warren offered another example of a potential compliant subdivision process where Lot 8 was 

subdivided off from the current parcel, and then the remaining area developed under the current 

PUD layout under a later application. 

 

J.Lovett and Chip Lovett left the meeting. 

 

B.Campbell read the exhibit list.  S.Rooney noted the state wetlands email should be added to the 

list. There was a discussion of what was intended in the body of the email.  J.Barnard and 

S.Baker note that there was more in the email chain, and that the email was in reference to her 

review of the application and finding there was no wetland permit required.  S.Baker noted that 

the application would clarify this for the final plan review.  The wetlands email would be entered 

as exhibit AA. 

 

S.Rooney referred to Charlotte Sullivan’s letter in the exhibits, and his previous responses, and 

asked if the applicant had any comments or further responses.  J.Barnard noted that A.Norris had 

left the meeting.  J.Barnard noted that he had reviewed the letter, and that the flood hazard area is 

not a concern due to the elevation change and distance to the development, and that the applicant 

was not going to wait for FEMA to finish remapping the area.  J.Barnard and S.Baker noted that 

the wildlife and wetlands questions had been addressed in the application and testimony. 

 

R.Warren asked if Lots 1 and 2 would contribute the greater amount of the material used to fill in 

the gravel pit.  J.Barnard noted there was no calculation done, but that relatively speaking this is 

likely true.  R.Warren asked if it was allowable to cut material and build a lower platform with it 

and build on that, or does it need to be compacted.  J.Barnard noted that foundations should be 

set on undisturbed native material. 

 

B.Campbell noted that the 60% open space issue still needed to be resolved by the DRB. 

J.Barnard repeated that he was on the Planning Commission at the time this section was written 

and that he did not believe applying the 60% open space calculation to the entire parcel was their 

intent.  D.Casey agreed that no one would write a regulation like that.  S.Baker provided 

B.Campbelll with his analysis of the intent of the “development site’ language, which 

B.Campbell noted that the DRB would review. 

 



Town of Starksboro Development Review Board, Minutes of April 23, 2026, Meeting 

And Preliminary Plan Review Hearing for #26-DRB-01 PUD Norris 9 Lot Subdivision.   

 

 Page 9 of 11 

 

D.Casey stated that if it was the DRB’s intent to waste land or make sure the least amount of 

development happened, then that’s what they should do, but that’s not what the regulations say, 

and the DRB can get an opinion from whomever, but that’s not what the regulation say. 

 

S.Baker noted that it would be inappropriate for the DRB to interpret “development site” as 

meaning the same as “area to be subdivided”, when the two terms are not used interchangeably 

elsewhere in the language. 

 

T.Perry asked how the applicant would define the development site.  S.Baker said it was an open 

question and that the bylaws could be read to mean the area of the building envelopes, not the 

lots to be developed.  

 

T.Perry asked about how the 60% open space applied to the entire parcel would differ from the 

same percentage applied to the total of developed area, and which was more applicable to the 

intent of the PUD to conserve the land normally allotted to each home in a standard subdivision. 

S.Baker noted that applying it to the whole parcel might be warranted if a full build out was 

proposed, but when only a portion of the building rights were proposed to be used, applying 60% 

to the entire parcel did not make sense.  S.Baker noted in his opinion that the question was more 

appropriate for the Planning Commission, and that the DRB should not be making this applicant 

bear the burden of addressing this ambiguity.  B.Campbell asked that some respect be given the 

DRB while they worked through how to address this issue.  

 

R.Warren noted that if the applicant was using the total of building envelopes as the 

“development site”, that the definition of land development on page 5-8 of the regulations 

included activity outside of the envelopes, so that might not be an appropriate interpretation. 

 

J.Barnard repeated that the rest of the site is not being developed and is therefore not part of the 

development site.  R.Warren agreed that the activities listed in the definition are not occurring on 

the remainder of the site. 

 

B.Campbell noted that the group seemed to agree that there is an issue with interpretation and 

definitions, and it needed to be resolved. 

 

J.Barnard noted that although there may have been a subsequent amendment of the regulations, 

he did not recall being asked to approve of requiring 60% of the entire parcel remain open. 

D.Casey said that would never happen and that interpretation is wrong.  T.Perry noted an 

example that of a 2000acre PUD with 6 homes being required to set aside 1200 acres, and that 

did not seem to make sense.  J.Barnard said that interpretation would drive him to recommend to 

the applicant to fully develop out the building rights in order to justify setting aside 60% of the 

whole parcel.  B.Campbell noted that it may require the DRB go to the Planning Commission to 

clarify the issue  

 

 S.Rooney provided a history of his initial review of the issue upon receipt of the application, and 

his discussions with the Town’s zoning consultant, who provided a white paper on why the 

development site in 358.H(2) should be taken to mean the entire parcel.  He then checked in the 

zoning ordinances of the surrounding towns, and interpreted their bylaws to intend that open 



Town of Starksboro Development Review Board, Minutes of April 23, 2026, Meeting 

And Preliminary Plan Review Hearing for #26-DRB-01 PUD Norris 9 Lot Subdivision.   

 

 Page 10 of 11 

 

space is determined as a percentage of the entire parcel as well.  He provided this information to 

the DRB, and noted that it was an issue that needed to be resolved. 

 

D.Casey noted that the DRB only needed to go by what is written in their regulations and it 

doesn’t matter what is written in other towns, and that he didn’t care what the zoning consultant 

said.  He said it appeared to him that the ZA and the DRB were searching for ways to limit 

development. S.Rooney took exception to the assignment of intent, and noted his only intent was 

to be sure the DRB or the applicant avoided legal issues with whatever decision was made, and 

that he would support either interpretation the DRB decided to move forward with. 

 

S.Baker reiterated his interpretation of development site as the portion of the lot being developed 

versus the entire parcel, and his agreement that the PUD should be considered to mean the entire 

subdivision.  He expressed his opinion that the ambiguity should be resolved in favor of the 

applicant.  S.Rooney agreed and noted that he recalled that this may be a requirement that needed 

to be confirmed. 

 

B.Campbell noted that the DRB members are citizens who are not development experts, and that 

this one of the first PUDs they’ve reviewed, and that they are learning here as well and 

unfortunately the applicant is involved in this learning process.  He noted that he is not trying to 

limit development, and if D.Casey felt that way that was not true. 

 

R.Warren asked of whomever is providing definitions that a definition of development site be 

provided.  D.Casey noted that to him it is clear.  T.Perry asked how the DRB would know what 

the area of the development site would be under D.Casey’s interpretation.  D.Casey said he 

didn’t know what that area was, but he knew it wasn’t 60% of the entire parcel.  B.Campbell 

asked if D.Casey considered his testimony to be his personal opinion or that of the entire 

Planning Commission.  D.Casey said it was both. 

 

R.Warren asked if D.Casey objected to providing a clear definition of development site.  

D.Casey did not object, but noted that the ZA has provided a list of 70 or more issues that are 

unclear in the regulations, and maybe nothing is clear in the regulations. 

 

B.Campbell noted it was the DRB’s job to apply the regulations to applications and that it should 

be expected that they need assistance when there are ambiguities. D.Casey said that meant that 

when the DRB didn’t understand something, then the application should be denied until the 

regulations are clarified.  B.Campbell said that expectation was extreme, and that he was only 

proposing to work with the Planning Commission to resolve some of these issues.  D.Casey said 

they could resolve the issue, then the next ZA could come in and question everything all over. 

T.Perry said that was all part of dealing with these issues, and that where there was confusion in 

this process, it was part of the process to resolve the confusion. 

 

D.Casey asked about the DRB’s rules for going into deliberation, and if the Board would 

deliberate in “secret”.  B.Campbell noted it was an option that the board had to decide. D.Casey 

asked if the ZA participated in the deliberation.  B.Campbell said no. D.Casey noted that when 

he was on the DRB they never voted in “secret”, and that it was important for transparency that 

the Board deliberate in public, so the public can understand what needs to be fixed and what is 



Town of Starksboro Development Review Board, Minutes of April 23, 2026, Meeting 

And Preliminary Plan Review Hearing for #26-DRB-01 PUD Norris 9 Lot Subdivision.   

 

 Page 11 of 11 

 

going on, and where the bus is headed, and that he wants the Board to deliberate in public.  

B.Campbell noted that there were advantages to members’ schedules offered by the closed 

session option that also needed to be taken into account. 

S.Rooney reviewed the requirements of the recently adopted DRB rules for going into closed or 

open deliberations.  The adopted rules require a majority to go into closed session, or a 

unanimous vote to remain in open session. 

 

B.Campbell asked if S.Baker had any closing thoughts.  S.Baker offered an apology if the 

temperature of the discussion was raised and appreciated the volunteer efforts of the board and 

the thorough discussion.  

 

Motion: 

R.Warren moved to close the hearing at 10:10pm.  R.Liotard seconded. 

Vote: All in favor. 

 

A discussion of the pros and cons and whether to proceed with an open deliberation versus a 

closed deliberation took place, and a review of the calendar was conducted to determine which 

approach could be accommodated.  S.Rooney noted the board had 45 days, until June 7th ,to 

issue a preliminary determination.  S.Rooney clarified that he attends the deliberative session as 

the DRB clerk to record the outcomes, but does not participate in the deliberation. 

 

Motion: 

B.Campbell made a motion to go into closed deliberative session.  E.Boardman seconded. 

  

Vote: 

All but T.Perry voted yes.  T.Perry opposed.  A 4-1 vote as a majority meant the motion passed. 

 

D.Casey asked if this vote meant every deliberation would be closed.  R.Liotard said no, it was 

being done in this case to deal with the scheduling difficulties and the need to issue the 

determination before the 45 days expired. 

 

D.Casey and S.Baker left the meeting. 

 

The Board set a date of Friday, April 24th to hold the closed deliberative session.  S.Rooney 

noted he would not be in attendance. 

 

Motion:  

E.Boardman made a motion to adjourn at 10:37pm.  B.Campbell seconded.  

Vote: All in favor. 



Town of Starksboro Development Review Board Exhibit List 

Applicant name: Boss/Kelly 

Application #: 26-DRB-02SD 

Date of Hearing: May 14, 2026 

Hearing Type: Major Subdivision Final Plan Review 
 

 

Exhibit # Description Date 

entered 

Submitted by 

A Warning, Abutters Mailing Affidavit 4/21/26 ZA 

B Final Plat Application Cover Letter by 
Barnard & Gervais dated 

 Applicant 

C DRB Application signed 4/13/26 4/21/26 Applicant 

D Owner Authorization Letter by Barnard 
& Gervais dated 11/18/25 

4/21/26 Applicant 

E Project Description and Review Criteria 
by Barnard & Gervais received 4/20/26 

4/21/26 Applicant 

F Draft Dwg. S-1 Overall Subdivision 
Plan dated 12-30-2025, Rev. 4-13-
2026 

4/21/26 Applicant 

G Draft Dwg. S-2 Lot 6 Site 
dated 12-30-26 rev 4-13-2026 

5/11/26 Applicant 

H Draft Dwg. S-3 Lot 1 House Site 

Plan dated 12-30-25 

5/11/26 Applicant 

I Draft Drawing PL-1 Two-Lot 
Subdivision Survey Plat dated 01-14-
2026 rev 4-13-2026 

5/11/26 Applicant 

J State Wastewater and Potable 

Water Supply Permit 

WW-9-3425-2  dated 2/26/2026 

5/11/26 Applicant 

K 26-DRB-02SD Preliminary Review 
Determination dated 3/26/26 

4/21/26 ZA 

L Applicant Response to DRB Preliminary 
Determination Conditions by Barnard & 
Gervais received 4/8/2026 

4/21/26 Applicant 

M ZA Notice of Incomplete Application dated 
4/17/26 

4/21/26 ZA 

N Applicant Response to ZA dated 4/20/26 4/21/26 Applicant 

O Letter from Putnam&Menard, PLC to the 
DRB dated 4/16/26 

4/21/26 Applicant 

P Email chain from Barnard & Gervais to 
Zapata.Courage@vermont.gov re: 
Wetlands compliance for State project 
2026-0033 dated 4/1/2026 

4/21/26 Applicant 

 



Town of Starksboro 

Development Review Board 

Notice of Hearing 

 

Bradley Boss and Crystal Kelly submitted a major subdivision application (26-DRB-02SD) for Final 

Plan Review of a Two-Lot Subdivision located on a 153.2 +/- acre parcel (10431) at 793 VT Route 

116, Starksboro.  The proposed subdivision is in the ASRR/FC Districts.  The hearing on the 

application will be held per the 2020 Starksboro Land Use and Development Regulations (SLUDR). 

The Starksboro Development Review Board will conduct the hearing on May 14, 2026, starting at 

6:30p.m. at the Starksboro Town O8ice with remote access (info below).  The full application is 

available to review by request of the Starksboro zoning o8ice, and on the website at 

https://www.starksborovt.org/agendas-and-minutes 

Pursuant to 24 V.S.A. §§ 4464(a)(1)(C) participation in this local proceeding is prerequisite to the 

right to take any subsequent appeal. 

Town of Starksboro is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89617415124 

 

Meeting ID: 896 1741 5124 

 

Or by Phone: +13052241968 

Warning Date :  April 23, 2026 

 

 

 

 

 

 

zoningadministrator
Text Box
Exhibit A



zoningadministrator
Text Box
Exhibit A



zoningadministrator
Text Box
Exhibit A



 BARNARD & GERVAIS, LLC  

Land Surveyors, Licensed Designers, Environmental Consultants 

www.barnardandgervais.com 
 

Hinesburg: 10523 VT Route 116, P.O. Box 133, Hinesburg, VT 05461; Phone (802) 482-2597 

Enosburg Falls: 167 Main Street Suite 10, P.O Box 820, Enosburg Falls, VT 05450; Phone (802) 933-5168 

 
April 13, 2026 
 
Town of Starksboro 
Attn: Steve Rooney 
PO Box 91 
Starksboro, VT 05487 
 
Subject:   Bradley Boss & Crystal Kelly, Two-Lot Subdivision, 793 VT Route 116 Starksboro, Vermont - Final 

Plat Hearing Application and Required Information 
 
Dear Steve: 
 
 I am writing on behalf of Bradley Boss & Crystal Kelly to formally request a final plat hearing for a 
proposed two-lot subdivision relative to their 153.2 +/- acre parcel (Lot 1) of land located at 793 VT Route 116 
in Starksboro, Vermont.  As you are aware from our previous email correspondence, the applicants are 
withdrawing the planned unit development (PUD) application and replacing it with this application so the 
subdivision is a “by right” subdivision that conforms with the current Land Use Regulations.  
 
 In accordance with the Town of Starksboro Land Use and Development Regulations, the following 
items are respectfully submitted: 
 

1. Town of Starksboro Development Review Board (DRB) Application. 
2. Authority To Act On Behalf Letter.  
3. Project Narrative. 
4. Names and Addresses of Adjoining Property Owners. 
5. Wastewater Design Drawings dated December 30, 2025, revised on April 13, 2026. 
6. Survey Plat PL-1 dated January 14, 2026, revised on April 13, 2026.  
7. Final Plat Application Fee (under separate cover). 

 
 Please review the included information and let me know if there are any other items that are required 
for the final plat hearing.  In the meantime, should you have any questions or comments, please do not hesitate to 
give me a call at (802) 482-2597.   
 
 
 
        Sincerely, 

          
        Jason S. Barnard 
        Licensed Designer #126179 
c: Bradley Boss & Crystal Kelly  

RECEIVED
04/13/2026

Town of Starksboro

http://www/
zoningadministrator
Text Box
Exhibit B



zoningadministrator
Text Box
Exhibit C

zoningadministrator
Typewritten Text
10431



 BARNARD & GERVAIS, LLC  
Land Surveyors, Licensed Designers, Environmental Consultants 

www.barnardandgervais.com 
 

Hinesburg: 10523 VT Route 116, P.O. Box 133, Hinesburg, VT 05461; Phone (802) 482-2597  
Enosburg Falls: 167 Main Street Suite 10, P.O Box 820, Enosburg Falls, VT 05450; Phone (802) 933-5168 

November 18, 2025 
 
Barnard and Gervais, LLC 
10523 VT Route 116 
PO Box 133 
Hinesburg, VT 05461 
 

Authorization Letter 
 
Re: Authorization to Act on Behalf of Property Owner 
 
Dear Steve, 
 

I, the undersigned, hereby confirm that I am duly authorized by the legal owner of the property 
located at: 

 
Property Address: 793 VT Route 116, Starksboro, VT 
 

to act on their behalf in connection with the following application: 
 

Application Description: Two-Lot Subdivision 
  

This authorization includes, but is not limited to: 

• Preparing, submitting, and managing the application on the Owner’s behalf; 

• Representing the Owner in all related matters before the relevant authorities; 

• Sending and receiving all correspondence related to the application like approvals or determinations;  

• Making decisions or representations as required during the course of the application process. 

 
Furthermore, this authorization extends to employees of Barnard and Gervais, LLC, permitting them to act 
on behalf of the Owner with respect to this project, as described above. 
 
This authorization shall remain in effect until completion of the application process or until it is revoked in 
writing by the Owner. 
 
Authorized Representative Contact Details: 

Name: Jason S. Barnard 

Company: Barnard & Gervais, LLC 

Phone: 802-482-2597 

Email: Jason@barnardandgervais.com 

 
  

Docusign Envelope ID: C8BBAA91-28D8-4CE4-A6D8-022221F82E92

RECEIVED
04/13/2026

Town of Starksboro

http://www/
zoningadministrator
Text Box
Exhibit D



Hinesburg: 10523 VT Route 116, P.O. Box 133, Hinesburg, VT 05461; Phone (802) 482-2597  
Enosburg Falls: 167 Main Street Suite 10, P.O. Box 820, Enosburg Falls, VT 05450; Phone (802) 933-5168 

 

Owner & Representative Details and Signature: 

Name of Legal Owner: Bradley Boss & Crystal Kelly  

Owner Representative: Bradley Boss & Crystal Kelly  

Signature of Owner: 

Signature of Owner:  

Signature of Authorized Representative:  

Signature of Authorized Representative: 

Date:  

 
        Sincerely, 
 
 
 
        Jason S. Barnard 
        Licensed Designer #126179 
 
 
c: Bradley Boss & Crystal Kelly  

Docusign Envelope ID: C8BBAA91-28D8-4CE4-A6D8-022221F82E92

11/20/2025

zoningadministrator
Text Box
Exhibit D



Bradley Boss & Crystal Kelly 
Two-Lot Subdivision 

793 VT Route 116 
Starksboro, Vermont 

 
 
 

Project Description 
 
 Bradley Boss and Crystal Kelly own a parcel of land (Lot 1) located at 793 VT Route 116 in 
Starksboro. The parcel is 153.2 +/- acres in size and contains a 4-bedroom farmhouse, barn, and 
several agricultural outbuildings. The farmhouse is served by an on-site in-ground wastewater system 
and provided water by an on-site shallow well. Mr. Boss and Ms. Kelly are proposing to subdivide 
the parcel into two (2) lots. Lot 1 will be 151.2 +/- acres and is proposed to be improved with a new 
4-bedroom single family residence that will be served by a new on-site in-ground wastewater system 
and provided water by a new on-site drilled well. Lot 6 will be 2.0 +/- acres and contain the existing 
4-bedroom farmhouse, barns, and outbuildings. The farmhouse will continue to be served by the on-
site in-ground wastewater system and will continue to be provided water by the shallow well located 
on Lot 1 via an easement. This subdivision and related water and wastewater systems have been 
issued a State of Vermont Wastewater System and Potable Water Supply Permit WW-9-3425-2. 
 

Lot 1 also contains a grandfathered sand pit that has been in use prior to the adoption of any 
zoning regulations. The pit will continue to be used at the same capacity it has been historically and 
will continue to be accessed on the existing gravel road leading there. The approximate extents of the 
grandfathered pit are shown on the site plans and survey plat. No changes are being proposed to the 
use of the sand pit that is considered grandfathered and predates the Town of Starksboro Land Use 
Regulations.  
 
Town of Starksboro, Land Use and Development Regulations 

  
In accordance with Section 426.E Review Criteria of the Town of Starksboro Land Use 

and Development Review regulations, the applicant shall demonstrate to the Development Review 
Board (DRB) that the project conforms to the review criteria listed below. 

 
• Siting and Suitability – The proposed subdivision will create two (2) new parcels, Lot 1 and 

Lot 6. The proposed residential home on Lot 1 is situated at a location that contains well 
drained soils and gently sloped topography. At this time, there is no new development 
proposed on Lot 6 as it will contain all the pre-existing buildings. The proposed subdivision 
has been designed in general conformance with the density and dimensional standards 
presented in Section 211 of the Starksboro Land Use Regulations. Building envelopes are 
shown as required under sections 243.B and 263.C of the current Land Use Regulations. 

 
• Natural Features – The proposed subdivision boundaries are based on existing infrnatural 

features, site improvements, and historic land use to the greatest extent practicable. The 
location of the existing buildings was taken into consideration, along with access and 
infrastructure (i.e. wastewater systems, water supply wells, and driveways). The proposed Lot 1 
residence will be located near an existing gravel access road to reduce overall impacts. No new 
development is being proposed within flood hazard areas and the project will not have undue 
adverse impact on significant wildlife habitat.  There are Class II wetlands associated with the 
parcel and all existing and proposed infrastructure will be adequately isolated from any Class II 
wetlands.   
 

zoningadministrator
Received Stamp

zoningadministrator
Text Box
4/20/2026

zoningadministrator
Text Box
Exhibit E



 2 

• Character of the Area and Privacy – The general character of the area associated with this 
part of Starksboro are single-family rural residential homes, businesses, and agriculture. As 
proposed, the subdivision creates one (1) new house lot. The proposed new residence will have 
no issues with privacy as it will be accessed using an existing access drive and will be built 
several hundred feet from any property lines. No new development is proposed on Lot 6, so 
this portion of the subject parcel will remain the same with the existing residential and 
agricultural buildings.  

  
• Energy Conservation and Access to Renewable Energy – The proposed new residential 

home will meet the most recent energy conservation standards, including the VT Residential 
Building Energy Standards.   

 
• Access and Circulation – Both proposed parcels will utilize individual existing gravel 

driveways as access. The driveways will be upgraded to applicable standards if necessary. 
Traffic generated by this subdivision will be negligible as there is only one single family 
residence being added and it will connect to Route 116. If required, a permit will be obtained 
by the landowner from VTRANS as part of this project.   

 
• Infrastructure, Utilities, Facilities and Services – VT Route 116 is currently a State of 

Vermont highway and will continue to be maintained by VTRANS. Starksboro presently 
provides fire service to this area and will continue to provide this service.  Utilities are currently 
located along VT Route 116. 

 
• Lighting – Any new lighting will be typical of rural residential homes and will be installed so 

that exterior lighting is down-shielded to mitigate light trespass off the proposed parcels and 
therefore all new exterior lighting will be compliant with Section 314 of the Town of 
Starksboro Land Use Regulations.  

 
• Recreation – Both parcels will have adequate access to recreation opportunities from on-site 

woodlands and agricultural fields.   

zoningadministrator
Text Box
Exhibit E



.

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

ohw
ohw

ohw

ohw

ohw

ohw

ohw

ohw

ohw

ohw

W

W

150'

200'

150'

500'

N/F
STEPHEN J. FORTNER

N/F
DAVID L. & JANET

RUSSELL

W

150'

500'

W

W

100'

200'

N/F
DAVID RUSSELL REVOCABLE TRUST &
JANET RUSSELL REVOCABLE TRUST

N/F
BRADLEY BOSS & CRYSTAL KELLY

EXISTING LOT 1: 153.2± ACRES
PROPOSED LOT 1: 151.21± ACRES

(PREVIOUSLY PERMITTED UNDER WW-9-3425-1)

N/F
LAURA'S RENTALS, LLC

N/F
STUART

MORROW

N/F
OTHER LANDS OF
BRADLEY BOSS &
CRYSTAL KELLY

N/F
DMV PROPERTIES, INC. AND

DAVID & VERONICA &
DENNIS & PEGGY

CASEY

N/FWAYNE R. PLACE

N/F
MINER HILLS, LLC

CAROL R.FAIRCLOTH

AS
RR

 Zo
nin

g D
ist

ric
t

FC
 Zo

nin
g D

ist
ric

t

Le
wi

s C
ree

k

Hillsboro Road (gravel)

889'±

295'±

344'±
129'±

1,7
28

'±A
lon

g R
oa

d

1,935'±

2,554'±

2,515'±

42
2'±

196'±

206'±

42
1'±

shallow
well

existing
leachfield

6' dia.
culvert

barbed
wire fence

shallow
well

VT Route 116 (paved)

barn

4-bedroom single
family residence

approximate
leachfield

BUILDING ENVELOPE
1.4± ACRES

found
iron

pipes

found
iron
pipe

approx. water service
(NOT FIELD VERIFIED)

50' stream buffer
(approximate)

shallow
well

wastewater
isolation zone

)))))))))))
))

))
))

)
)
)
)
) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )

)
)
)))

)
)
)
)
)
))
))))

PROPOSED LOT 6
2.0Ñ ACRES

N/F
OTHER LANDS OF
BRADLEY BOSS &
CRYSTAL KELLY

N/F
KEITH & GRACE PIKE

(PREVIOUSLY PERMITTED AS
LOT 2 UNDER WW-9-3425-1)

WELL ISOLATION
ZONE

WASTEWATER
ISOLATION ZONE

field road

gravel drive

GRAVEL
DRIVE

W

DRILLED WELL

PRIMARY
WASTEWATER SYSTEM

REPLACEMENT
WASTEWATER AREA

4- BEDROOM SINGLE
FAMILY RESIDENCE

24" concrete culvert

existing gravel
drive access

REPLACEMENT
WASTEWATER AREA

WASTEWATER
ISOLATION ZONE

20' WIDE WELL &
WATERLINE EASEMENT

BUILDING
ENVELOPE
1.3± ACRES

W
L

W
L

WL

W
L

W
L

WL

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

WL

WL

W
L

W
L

WL W
B

W
B

W
B

W
B

WB

W
B

W
B

WB

WB

W
B

W
B

W
B

W
B

W
B

WB
W

B

WB

W
L W

LW
B

WB

W
B

W
L

W
L

W
L

WL

W
L

W
L

W
L

WL

W
L W

L

W
L

W
B

W
B

W
B

W
B

W
B

WB

WB

W
B

W
B

W
B

WB

W
L

WL

WL

WL

WLWL

WL
WL

WL

WL W
B

WB

WB

WB

WB

WBWB

W
B

WB

wetland boundary
per ANR atlas

50' wetland buffer
per ANR atlas

class II wetland boundary
(BASED ON ANR ATLAS)

50' wetland buffer

approximate
extents of existing
"grandfathered"
sand & gravel pits

class II wetland boundary
(BASED ON ANR ATLAS)

50' wetland buffer

treeline

existing gravel drive
(NOT TO BE EXPANDED
OR WIDENED THROUGH
WETLAND CROSSING)

685

685

683

existing gravel pit entrance
(TO BE MAINTAINED AS AN
EMERGENCY VEHICLE
TURN-AROUND AREA)

VT
 G

RI
D

10523 VT Route 116, P.O.Box 133

Hinesburg, VT 05461

Telephone: (802) 482-2597

167 Main Street, P.O.Box 820

Enosburg Falls, VT 05450

Telephone: (802) 933-5168

BARNARD &
  GERVAIS, LLC

Land Surveying

  Water & Wastewater

     Environmental Consulting

SHEET 1 OF 4

DRAWING NO.

FINAL STATE REVIEWPRELIMINARY DRAFT

THESE PLANS WITH LATEST REVISIONS SHOULD ONLY BE USED FOR

THE PURPOSE SHOWN BELOW:

REVISIONS

DESCRIPTIONDATE BY

SCALE:

1" = 200'

SURVEY:

DT, TW, TG

DRAWN:

CS, JG

CHECKED:

JB

SIGNATURE:

DRAFT

S-1

DATE:

12-30-2025

DESIGNER CERTIFICATION STATEMENT

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT, IN THE EXERCISE OF

MY REASONABLE PROFESSIONAL JUDGEMENT,

THE DESIGN-RELATED INFORMATION

SUBMITTED WITH THIS APPLICATION IS TRUE

AND CORRECT AND THE DESIGN INCLUDED IN

THIS APPLICATION FOR A PERMIT COMPLIES

WITH THE VERMONT WASTEWATER SYSTEM

AND POTABLE WATER SUPPLY RULES.

Project Location Map
Not to Scale

HILLSBORO RD

VT
 R

OU
TE

 11
6

PROJECT
LOCATION

OVERALL SUBDIVISION PLAN

PROJECT NO.

25361

LEGEND

GAS UNDERGROUND GAS LINE

BOUNDARY LINE/ R.O.W. (EXISTING)

FINISH GRADE
100

UTILITY POLE/ OVERHEAD WIRESohw

UE UNDERGROUND ELECTRICAL CONDUIT

SURVEY TRAVERSE STATION
TEMPORARY BENCHMARK
(TYPE AND ELEVATION NOTED)

100

BOUNDARY LINE/ R.O.W. (ABUTTING)

GRAVITY SEWER (EXISTING)S S

FORCE MAINFM FM

W

TEST PIT (TP-01)

DRILLED WELL (UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED)

1-FOOT GROUND SURVEY CONTOUR
100

WELL ISOLATION
WASTEWATER ISOLATION

1-FOOT LIDAR CONTOUR
(OBTAINED FROM VCGI DATABASE)

GRAVITY SEWER (PROPOSED)S S

TREE LINE
PROPOSED LIMITS OF CLEARING

tel UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE LINE

DITCHLINEdl dl

1-INCH DIAMETER CL200 POLYETHYLENE PLASTIC
WATER LINE (UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED)

W W

STONE WALL (EXISTING)0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ZONING SETBACKS

WETLAND BOUNDARYWL
WETLAND BUFFERWB

ZONING DISTRICT BOUNDARY

BOUNDARY LINE/ R.O.W. (PROPOSED)

BOUNDARY LINE/ R.O.W. (TO BE DISSOLVED)
SIDELINE OF EASEMENT
EDGE OF ROAD/DRIVE (SURFACE NOTED)

PROJECT NOTES:
1. THIS IS NOT A BOUNDARY SURVEY. PROJECT PERIMETER LINES ARE BASED ON A PLAN ENTITLED "LANDS OF
BRADLEY BOSS & CRYSTAL KELLY, 793 VT ROUTE 116, STARKSBORO, VERMONT, TOWO-LOT SUBDIVISION
SURVEY PLAT" BY BARNARD AND GERVAIS, LLC, DATED 01-14-2026.

2. THE LOCATIONS OF EXISTING PHYSICAL FEATURES ON THIS PLAN ARE BASED ON A TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY
COMPLETED BY BARNARD AND GERVAIS, LLC IN FEBRUARY 2025.

3. THE ELEVATIONS ON THIS PLAN WITHIN THE DASHED BOUNDARIES SHOWN ARE 1-FOOT CONTOURS BASED ON
NAVD88 (GEOID12B) ESTABLISHED FROM SURVEY GRADE GNSS READINGS COLLECTED WITH A TRIMBLE R12i
GNSS RECEIVER ADJUSTED TO VERMONT GRID ON RANDOM CONTROL POINTS USING REAL TIME KINEMATIC
CORRECTIONS FROM A VIRTUAL REFERENCE STATION OF THE VT CORS NETWORK.  THE ELEVATIONS ON THIS
PLAN OUTSIDE THE DASHED BOUNDARIES SHOWN ARE 1-FOOT LIDAR CONTOURS OBTAINED FROM THE STATE
OF VERMONT VCGI OPEN DATA PORTAL DATABASE.

4. FOR CLARITY, TEXT IDENTIFYING EXISTING ITEMS IS LOWER CASE; TEXT IDENTIFYING PROPOSED ITEMS IS
UPPER CASE.

5. NO ATTEMPT HAS BEEN MADE TO LOCATE ANY UNDERGROUND UTILITIES BY BARNARD AND GERVAIS, LLC.
THE CONTRACTOR WILL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR CONTACTING DIG SAFE TO HAVE ANY UNDERGROUND UTILITIES
MARKED PRIOR TO ANY EXCAVATION OR SITE WORK.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE DIG SAFE NETWORK
AT LEAST 72 HOURS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

6. THE PRIMARY AND REPLACEMENT WASTEWATER DISPOSAL SYSTEMS SHOWN HEREON WERE DESIGNED /
SIZED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE STATE OF VERMONT, AGENCY OF NATURAL RESOURCES, ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION RULES, CHAPTER 1, "WASTEWATER SYSTEM AND POTABLE WATER SUPPLY RULES" EFFECTIVE
NOVEMBER 6, 2023.

7. WETLANDS SHOWN ON THE SUBJECT PARCEL  ARE BASED ON INFORMATION FROM THE "VERMONT NATURAL
RESOURCES ATLAS" AND NO OTHER WETLAND DELINEATION OF SAID PARCEL HAD BEEN CONDUCTED OF WHICH
BARNARD & GERVAIS, LLC IS AWARE. BARNARD & GERVAIS, LLC MAKES NO WARRANTIES THAT WETLANDS OR
ASSOCIATED BUFFERS DO OR DO NOT EXIST ON SAID PARCEL.  IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE LANDOWNER OR
CONTRACTOR CONTACT A WETLAND SPECIALIST TO CONFIRM NO WETLANDS EXIST PRIOR TO ANY EARTH WORK
OR CONSTRUCTION. FOR REFERENCE, THIS PROJECT IS LOGGED WITH THE STATE OF VERMONT WETLANDS
PROGRAM PROJECT #2026-0033.

8. BARNARD & GERVAIS, LLC IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY ASPECTS OF HEALTH AND SAFETY ASSOCIATED
WITH THIS PROJECT.

9. ALL EXCAVATION WORK SHALL BE PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE STATE OF VERMONT,
OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ADMINISTRATION (VOSHA) GUIDELINES FOR TRENCH EXCAVATIONS.

10. THE CONTRACTOR AND/OR LANDOWNER SHALL ADHERE TO THE GUIDELINES SET FORTH IN THE STATE OF
VERMONT EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL HANDBOOK FOR CONSTRUCTION SITES.  IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY
OF THE LANDOWNER OR SITE CONTRACTOR TO ENSURE THESE GUIDELINES ARE FOLLOWED AND
EROSION/SEDIMENT CONTROL MEASURES ARE MAINTAINED THROUGHOUT THE COURSE OF THE PROJECT.

11. IN THE EVENT THE REPLACEMENT WASTEWATER SYSTEM FOR LOT 1 AND/OR LOT 6 NEEDS TO BE BUILT, A
FULL DESIGN SHALL BE COMPLETED AND A PERMIT AMENDMENT APPLIED FOR PRIOR TO THE START OF ANY
CONSTRUCTION.

12. THIS PROPERTY IS SUBJECT TO STATE OF VERMONT POTABLE WATER SUPPLY AND WASTEWATER SYSTEM
PERMIT WW-9-3425-1.

DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS

LOT FRONTAGE (LOT <2 AC):

SETBACK - ROAD CENTERLINE:
SETBACK - ADJ. PROP. (RES.):

BUILDING FOOTPRINT (ALL OTHER BLDGS.):

SETBACK - ADJ. PROP. (NONRES.):

LOT COVERAGE (RESIDENTIAL):

ASRR DISTRICT:

100 FT.

100 FT.
20 FT.

NO

50 FT.

20%

MIN.

MIN.
MIN.

MAX.

MIN.

MAX.

RESIDENTIAL DENSITY: 1 DU/ 10 AC MAX.
LOT SIZE (RESIDENTIAL):

LOT FRONTAGE (LOT 2 TO <5 AC): 250 FT. MIN.
LOT FRONTAGE (LOT 5 TO <10 AC): 350 FT. MIN.
LOT FRONTAGE (LOT >10 AC): 500 FT. MIN.

LOT COVERAGE (NONRESIDENTIAL): LESSER OF 20%

LOT SIZE (NONRESIDENTIAL): 2 ACRE MIN.

NO MAX.

BUILDING HEIGHT: 35 FT. MAX.

BUILDING FOOTPRINT (1- & 2- FAMILY RES.):

OR 3 ACRES MAX.

LOT FRONTAGE (LOT <2 AC):

SETBACK - ROAD CENTERLINE:
SETBACK - ADJ. PROP. (RES.):

BUILDING FOOTPRINT (ALL OTHER BLDGS.):

SETBACK - ADJ. PROP. (NONRES.):

LOT COVERAGE (RESIDENTIAL):

FC DISTRICT:

100 FT.

75 FT.
20 FT.

NO

50 FT.

10%

MIN.

MIN.
MIN.

MAX.

MIN.

MAX.

RESIDENTIAL DENSITY: 1 DU/ 25 AC MAX.
LOT SIZE (RESIDENTIAL): 1 ACRE MIN.

LOT FRONTAGE (LOT 2 TO <5 AC): 150 FT. MIN.
LOT FRONTAGE (LOT 5 TO <10 AC): 200 FT. MIN.
LOT FRONTAGE (LOT >10 AC): 500 FT. MIN.

LOT COVERAGE (NONRESIDENTIAL): LESSER OF 5%

LOT SIZE (NONRESIDENTIAL): 5 ACRE MIN.

NO MAX.

BUILDING HEIGHT: 35 FT. MAX.

BUILDING FOOTPRINT (1- & 2- FAMILY RES.):

OR 3 ACRES MAX.

PER TOWN OF STARKSBORO LAND USE AND DEVELOPMENT
REGULATIONS ADOPTED JANUARY 7, 2020.

1

1

1/2 - 2 AC OR >25 AC

ZONING DISTRICTS

ZONING INFORMATION

AGRICULTURAL, SCENIC & RURAL RESIDENTIAL (ASRR)
FORESTRY & CONSERVATION (FC)
WATERSHED PROTECTION (WP)

BRADLEY BOSS &

CRYSTAL KELLY

793 VT ROUTE 116, STARKSBORO, VERMONT

TWO-LOT SUBDIVISION

OWNER:

BRADLEY BOSS &

CRYSTAL KELLY

DEED - Vol. 126, PG. 522

SPAN # 615-193-10431

PARCEL ID # 10431

ACRES: 153.2±

REVISED LOT 6 BOUNDARY LINES & BUILDING ENVELOPE03-18-2026 JG

DESIGNATE EMERGENCY VEHICLE TURN-AROUND AREA.04-01-2026 SB

REVISED LOT 6 BOUNDARY LINES & BUILDING ENVELOPE04-13-2026 JG

zoningadministrator
Received Stamp

zoningadministrator
Text Box
4/20/2026

zoningadministrator
Text Box
Exhibit F



oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

ohw
ohw

ohw
ohw

W
W

W
W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W

100'

PROPOSED LOT 6

2.0± ACRES

survey contour boundary
(SEE NOTE #3 ON SHEET S-1)

barn

TP-3

TP-1

TP-2

Bradley Boss & Crystal Kelly

N/F

Existing Lot 1: 153.2± Acres

Proposed Lot 1: 151.21± Acres

barn

silo

4-bedroom
single family

residence

approximate location of
water service line

(NOT FIELD VERIFIED)

well isolation zone

approximate location of
existing leachfield

(NOT FIELD VERIFIED)

agricultural
building

agricultural
building

agricultural
building

PROPOSED SUBDIVISION BOUNDARY (TYP.)

gravel drive

Other Lands Of

Bradley Boss & Crystal Kelly

N/F

VT
 R

ou
te 

11
6 (

pa
ve

d)

existing
access

existing
access

20' WIDE WATERLINE
EASEMENT (CENTERED
OVER EXISTING WATER

SERVICE PIPE)

LOT 6 REPLACEMENT WASTEWATER AREA
(TWO 4' X 42' ABSORPTION TRENCHES WITH

1' OF STONE BENEATH THE LATERALS)

FUTURE REPLACEMENT
DRILLED WELL SITE

WELL ISOLATION
ZONE

2

0

6

'

Ñ

4

2

2

'

Ñ

1

9

6

'

Ñ

8

'

Ñ

1

5

'
Ñ

4

2

1

'
Ñ

WASTEWATER
ISOLATION ZONE

100'

200'

BUILDING
ENVELOPE
1.3± ACRES

TBM (spike in the
ground, elev.= 637.9')

VT
 G

RI
D

10523 VT Route 116, P.O.Box 133

Hinesburg, VT 05461

Telephone: (802) 482-2597

167 Main Street, P.O.Box 820

Enosburg Falls, VT 05450

Telephone: (802) 933-5168

BARNARD &
  GERVAIS, LLC

Land Surveying

  Water & Wastewater

     Environmental Consulting

SHEET 2 OF 4

DRAWING NO.

FINAL STATE REVIEWPRELIMINARY DRAFT

THESE PLANS WITH LATEST REVISIONS SHOULD ONLY BE USED FOR

THE PURPOSE SHOWN BELOW:

REVISIONS

DESCRIPTIONDATE BY

SCALE:

1" = 30'

SURVEY:

DT, TW

DRAWN:

CS, JG

CHECKED:

JB

SIGNATURE:

DRAFT

S-2

DATE:

12-30-2025

DESIGNER CERTIFICATION STATEMENT

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT, IN THE EXERCISE OF

MY REASONABLE PROFESSIONAL JUDGEMENT,

THE DESIGN-RELATED INFORMATION

SUBMITTED WITH THIS APPLICATION IS TRUE

AND CORRECT AND THE DESIGN INCLUDED IN

THIS APPLICATION FOR A PERMIT COMPLIES

WITH THE VERMONT WASTEWATER SYSTEM

AND POTABLE WATER SUPPLY RULES.

LOT 6 SITE PLAN

BRADLEY BOSS &

CRYSTAL KELLY

793 VT ROUTE 116, STARKSBORO, VERMONT

TWO-LOT SUBDIVISION

PROJECT NO.

25361

LEGEND

GAS UNDERGROUND GAS LINE

BOUNDARY LINE/ R.O.W. (EXISTING)

FINISH GRADE
100

UTILITY POLE/ OVERHEAD WIRESohw

UE UNDERGROUND ELECTRICAL CONDUIT

SURVEY TRAVERSE STATION
TEMPORARY BENCHMARK
(TYPE AND ELEVATION NOTED)

100

BOUNDARY LINE/ R.O.W. (ABUTTING)

GRAVITY SEWER (EXISTING)S S

FORCE MAINFM FM

W

TEST PIT (TP-01)

SOIL BORING (SB-01)

1-FOOT GROUND SURVEY CONTOUR
100

WELL ISOLATION
WASTEWATER ISOLATION

1-FOOT LIDAR CONTOUR
(OBTAINED FROM VCGI DATABASE)

GRAVITY SEWER (PROPOSED)S S

TREE LINE
PROPOSED LIMITS OF CLEARING

tel UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE LINE

DITCHLINEdl dl

1-INCH DIAMETER CL200 POLYETHYLENE PLASTIC
WATER LINE (UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED)

W W

STONE WALL (EXISTING)0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ZONING SETBACKS

WETLAND BOUNDARYWL
WETLAND BUFFERWB

ZONING DISTRICT BOUNDARY

BOUNDARY LINE/ R.O.W. (PROPOSED)

BOUNDARY LINE/ R.O.W. (TO BE DISSOLVED)
SIDELINE OF EASEMENT
EDGE OF ROAD/DRIVE (SURFACE NOTED)

DRILLED WELL (UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED)

OWNER:

BRADLEY BOSS &

CRYSTAL KELLY

DEED - Vol. 126, PG. 522

SPAN # 615-193-10431

PARCEL ID # 10431

ACRES: 153.2Ñ

REVISED LOT 6 BOUNDARY LINES & BUILDING ENVELOPE03-18-2026 JG

REVISED LOT 6 BOUNDARY LINES & BUILDING ENVELOPE04-13-2026 JG

AutoCAD SHX Text
635

AutoCAD SHX Text
635

AutoCAD SHX Text
635

AutoCAD SHX Text
636

AutoCAD SHX Text
637

AutoCAD SHX Text
634

AutoCAD SHX Text
633

AutoCAD SHX Text
632

AutoCAD SHX Text
631

AutoCAD SHX Text
634

AutoCAD SHX Text
633

AutoCAD SHX Text
632

AutoCAD SHX Text
636

AutoCAD SHX Text
637

AutoCAD SHX Text
638

AutoCAD SHX Text
639

AutoCAD SHX Text
638

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE 	1 INCH = 30 FEET1 INCH = 30 FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
90

zoningadministrator
Received Stamp

zoningadministrator
Text Box
4/22/2026

zoningadministrator
Text Box
Exhibit G



))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))
))

))
))

))
))

))
))

))
))

))
))

))
))

))
))

)
))

))
))

))
))

))
))

))
))

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)))))))))))))))))

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
))
)
)
))
)
)
))
)
)
)))
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
))))))))))

))))))
))))))))

W

existing
treeline

TBM (spike in the
ground, elev.= 684.4')

100'

200'

existing gravel road

Bradley Boss & Crystal Kelly

N/F

Existing Lot 1: 153.2 ± Acres

Proposed Lot 1: 148.36± Acres

TP-5

TP-7

TP-4

PROPOSED GRAVEL DRIVE

existing field road

survey contour boundary
(SEE NOTE #3 ON SHEET S-1)

AS
RR

 Zo
nin

g D
ist

ric
t

FC
 Zo

nin
g D

ist
ric

t

W

WELL ISOLATION
ZONE

DRILLED WELL
(SEE DETAIL ON

SHEET D-1)

1" DIA. CL200 OR CTS
POLYETHYLENE PLASTIC
WATER LINE (SEE PIPE IN

TRENCH DETAIL ON SHEET D-)
4-BEDROOM SINGLE
FAMILY RESIDENCE

LOT 1 REPLACEMENT
MOUND AREA (10' X 49'

ABSORPTION BED WITH 1' OF
SAND BENEATH THE STONE.
SEE NOTE #x ON SHEET S-1)

S
S

S
S

A

A'

100'

200'

100'

WASTEWATER
ISOLATION ZONE

LOT 1 PRIMARY IN-GROUND
WASTEWATER SYSTEM (THREE 4' X 45'
ABSORPTION TRENCHES WITH 24" OF
STONE BENEATH THE LATERALS, SEE

DETAILS ON SHEET D-1)

5-HOLE CONCRETE DISTRIBUTION
BOX (SEE DETAILS ON SHEET D-1)

BUILDING
ENVELOPE
1.4± ACRES

WL

WL

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

WL

WL

WL

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

WL
WL

WB
WB

WB

WB

W
B

W
B

W
B

W
B

W
B

W
B

W
B

W
B

W
B

W
B

W
B

W
B

W
B

W
B

W
B

WB

WB

WB

WB

W
B

W
B

W
B

W
B

W
B

W
B

W
B

W
B

WB

WB

WB WB

4" DIA. SCH. 40 SOLID PVC PIPE
(MIN. LENGTH = 10 FT

MIN. SLOPE =0.02 FT/FT,
SEE PIPE IN TRENCH DETAIL

ON SHEET D-1)

Clas II wetland
boundary (BASED
ON ANR ATLAS)

50' wetland buffer

684
682

INVERT ELEV. OUT OF
FOUNDATION = 683.0'±

4" DIA. SDR 35 GASKETED PVC
PIPE (MIN. SLOPE =0.02 FT/FT,

SEE PIPE IN TRENCH DETAIL
ON SHEET D-1)

1000 GALLON CONCRETE SEPTIC
TANK (SEE DETAILS ON SHEET D-1)

TP-6

>10'

>10'

>10'

685

685

683

VT
 G

RI
D

10523 VT Route 116, P.O.Box 133

Hinesburg, VT 05461

Telephone: (802) 482-2597

167 Main Street, P.O.Box 820

Enosburg Falls, VT 05450

Telephone: (802) 933-5168

BARNARD &
  GERVAIS, LLC

Land Surveying

  Water & Wastewater

     Environmental Consulting

SHEET 3 OF 4

DRAWING NO.

FINAL STATE REVIEWPRELIMINARY DRAFT

THESE PLANS WITH LATEST REVISIONS SHOULD ONLY BE USED FOR

THE PURPOSE SHOWN BELOW:

REVISIONS

DESCRIPTIONDATE BY

SCALE:

1" = 30'

SURVEY:

DT, TW

DRAWN:

JG

CHECKED:

JB

SIGNATURE:

JASON S. BARNARD

LICENSED DESIGNER #126179

O

O

A

T

E

E

F

V

R

M

N

S

T

T

L

C

D

N

E

S

E

D
E

S

G

N

E

R

I

I

JASON S. BARNARD

NO. 126179

JASON S. BARNARD

LICENSED DESIGNER #126179

OWNER:

BRADLEY BOSS &

CRYSTAL KELLY

DEED - Vol. 126, PG. 522

SPAN # 615-193-10431

PARCEL ID # 10431

ACRES: 153.2Ñ

S-3

DATE:

12-30-2025

DESIGNER CERTIFICATION STATEMENT

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT, IN THE EXERCISE OF

MY REASONABLE PROFESSIONAL JUDGEMENT,

THE DESIGN-RELATED INFORMATION

SUBMITTED WITH THIS APPLICATION IS TRUE

AND CORRECT AND THE DESIGN INCLUDED IN

THIS APPLICATION FOR A PERMIT COMPLIES

WITH THE VERMONT WASTEWATER SYSTEM

AND POTABLE WATER SUPPLY RULES.

LOT 1 HOUSE SITE PLAN

BRADLEY BOSS &

CRYSTAL KELLY

793 VT ROUTE 116, STARKSBORO, VERMONT

TWO-LOT SUBDIVISION

PROJECT NO.

25361

LEGEND

GAS UNDERGROUND GAS LINE

BOUNDARY LINE/ R.O.W. (EXISTING)

FINISH GRADE
100

UTILITY POLE/ OVERHEAD WIRESohw

UE UNDERGROUND ELECTRICAL CONDUIT

SURVEY TRAVERSE STATION
TEMPORARY BENCHMARK
(TYPE AND ELEVATION NOTED)

100

BOUNDARY LINE/ R.O.W. (ABUTTING)

GRAVITY SEWER (EXISTING)S S

FORCE MAINFM FM

W

TEST PIT (TP-01)

SOIL BORING (SB-01)

1-FOOT GROUND SURVEY CONTOUR
100

WELL ISOLATION
WASTEWATER ISOLATION

1-FOOT LIDAR CONTOUR
(OBTAINED FROM VCGI DATABASE)

GRAVITY SEWER (PROPOSED)S S

TREE LINE
PROPOSED LIMITS OF CLEARING

tel UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE LINE

DITCHLINEdl dl

1-INCH DIAMETER CL200 POLYETHYLENE PLASTIC
WATER LINE (UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED)

W W

STONE WALL (EXISTING)0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ZONING SETBACKS

WETLAND BOUNDARYWL
WETLAND BUFFERWB

ZONING DISTRICT BOUNDARY

BOUNDARY LINE/ R.O.W. (PROPOSED)

BOUNDARY LINE/ R.O.W. (TO BE DISSOLVED)
SIDELINE OF EASEMENT
EDGE OF ROAD/DRIVE (SURFACE NOTED)

DRILLED WELL (UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED)

DRAFT

zoningadministrator
Snapshot

zoningadministrator
Text Box
Exhibit H



STEPHEN J. FORTNER
N/F

VOL. 125, PG. 109

DAVID L. & JANET
RUSSELL

N/F
VOL. 88, PG. 547

WAYNE R. PLACE
N/F

VOL. 52, PG. 421

 #

 X

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

ohw
ohw

ohw

ohw

ohw
ohw

KEITH PIKE &
GRACE PIKE

N/F
VOL. 126, PG.

510

LANDS OF
CRYSTAL L. KELLY & BRADLEY A. BOSS

N/F
VOL. 126, PG. 522

EXISTING LOT 1: 153.2± ACRES
PROPOSED LOT 1: 151.2± ACRES

NOT SURVEYED BY BARNARD & GERVAIS, LLC.

LAURA'S RENTALS, LLC
N/F

VOL. 124, PG. 559

DMV PROPERTIES, INC. AND
DAVID & VERONICA &

DENNIS & PEGGY CASEY
N/F

VOL. 77, PG. 216

W

889.20'

62.00'
S82°40'04"W

11
4" IPF

0.3' A.G.3
4" IPF

0.4' A.G.

11
4" IPF 0.4' A.G.

3
4" IPF 1.1' A.G.

RBTS

OTHER LANDS OF
CRYSTAL L. KELLY

& BRADLEY A. BOSS
N/F

VOL. 126, PG. 522
NOT SURVEYED BY

BARNARD &
GERVAIS, LLC.

STUART
MORROW

N/F
VOL. 53, PG. 334

RBTS

RBTS

RBTS
RBTS

AS
RR

 ZO
NI

NG
 D

IST
RI

CT

FC
 ZO

NI
NG

 D
IST

RI
CT

GRAVEL PIT

GRAVEL
PIT

S84°00'00"W

1232.76'
S83°47'00"W

256.42'
442' ±

SHALLOW
WELL

GRAVEL DRIVE

2554' ±

2548' ±

S27°49'43"W
107.10'

S13°54'45"W
97.64'

S56°36'57"E294.99'

S6°28'02"E

TIE LINE RBTS TO RBTS

DAVID RUSSELL
REVOCABLE TRUST &

JANET RUSSELL
REVOCABLE TRUST

N/F
VOL. 124, PG. 91-92

PROPOSED
BUILDING

ENVELOPE

PROPOSED

GRAVEL DRIVE

5
8" RBF 0.5' A.G.

M.C. GAINES
VTLS 0132673

FIELD ROAD

S20°03'00"W

TIE LINE RBF TO RBTS

OTHER LANDS OF
CRYSTAL L. KELLY

& BRADLEY A. BOSS
N/F

VOL. 126, PG. 522
LOT 4

NOT SURVEYED BY
BARNARD &

GERVAIS, LLC.

HILLSBORO RD

VT ROUTE 116

W

PROPOSED 20' WIDE
WATERLINE EASEMENT
(TO BE CENTERED OVER

EXISTING PIPE)

TIE
 LI

NE

522.58'

52
2.6

'±
AL

ON
G 

R.
O.

W
.

5
8" RBF 0.9' A.G.

M.C. GAINES
VTLS 0132673

5
8" RBF 0.5' A.G.

M.C. GAINES
VTLS 0132673

79
2.9

'±
AL

ON
G 

R.
O.

W.

20'

S22°04'27"W
791.61'

25.1± ACRES IN
FC ZONING DISTRICT

N1
°1

0'5
3"

W
10

38
.70

'

TIE LINE

TI
E 

LI
NE

L9

L10
L11

L1
2

L1
3

L1
4

L1
5

L16

N81°21'28"W
1562.83'

S3
6°5

7'0
7"W

78
4.4

6'

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

oh
w

S2
4°

28
'58

"W
42

1.1
9'

TIE
 LI

NE

RBTS

RBTS

RBTS

RBTS

LEACH
FIELD

BARN

BA
RN

AGRICULTURAL
BUILDINGS

HO
US

E

DR
IV

E

LANDS OF
CRYSTAL L. KELLY & BRADLEY A. BOSS

N/F
EXISTING LOT 1: 153.2± ACRES

PROPOSED LOT 1: 151.2± ACRES
NOT SURVEYED BY BARNARD & GERVAIS, LLC

42
1.2

'± 
AL

ON
G 

R.
O.

W
.

L1

L2

L3

L5

L4

L6

L7

L8

N62°56'51"W
195.96'

S2
4°

42
'19

"W

42
2.1

3'

S58°57'22"E 206.63'

L1
7

N62°54'33"W

108.52'

S2
4°

42
'19

"W
38

3.1
9'

S58°57'22"E138.38'

PROPOSED LOT 6:
2.0± ACRES

THIS IS A PRELIMINARY PLAN
AND SHOULD NOT BE
USED FOR CONVEYANCES

VT
 G

RI
D

LOCATION PLAN
N.T.S.

I CERTIFY THAT, TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE, THIS PLAN IS BASED ON
INFORMATION ABSTRACTED FROM PERTINENT DEEDS AND/OR OTHER OFFICIAL
RECORDS AND CONFORMS TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF 27 VSA Ä 1403.

DATED THIS __________________ DAY OF ____________________, 20___.

_________________________________________________________ L.S. 0132699

SURVEY REFERENCES:
1. "LANDS OF THE ESTATE OF MITCHELL KELLY, VT ROUTE 116 & HILLSBORO ROAD
STARKSBORO, VERMONT, TWO-LOT SUBDIVISION & BOUNDARY LINE
ADJUSTMENT SURVEY PLAT" DATED 03-31-2025 BY BARNARD & GERVAIS, LLC AND
RECORDED IN THE TOWN OF STARKSBORO MAP RECORDS MAP SLIDES 92 B, C, D.

2. "PORTION OF PROPERTY OF DAVID L. & JANET G. RUSSELL, ADDISON COUNTY,
STARKSBORO, VT" DATED APRIL 26, 1983 BY RODNEY R. ORVIS AND RECORDED IN
THE TOWN OF STARKSBORO MAP RECORDS MAP SLIDE 23B.

3. "SURVEY PLAT OF LANDS BELONGING TO THE ESTATE OF FRANCIS O'CONNOR -
VERMONT ROUTE 116, TOWNS OF BRISTOL, MONKTON, & STARKSBORO, ADDISON
COUNTY, VERMONT" DATED 7 JANUARY 2004 BYSOUTH MOUNTAIN SURVEYING &
MAPPING AND RECORDED IN THE TOWN OF BRISTOL MAP RECORDS MAP SLIDE
#49, MAP #307.

SURVEY NOTES:
1. BEARINGS SHOWN HEREON WERE GENERATED FROM SURVEY GRADE GNSS READINGS COLLECTED WITH
A TRIMBLE R12i GNSS RECEIVER ON RANDOM CONTROL POINTS AND ADJUSTED TO VT GRID NAD83(2011)
USING REAL TIME KINEMATIC CORRECTIONS FROM A VIRTUAL REFERENCE STATION GENERATED BY THE
VERMONT CORS NETWORK.

2. NO ATTEMPT HAS BEEN MADE TO LOCATE OR IDENTIFY ANY EASEMENTS OR RIGHTS OF WAYS UNLESS
OTHERWISE SHOWN ON THIS PLAN.

3. A  SURVEY WAS COMPLETED IN DECEMBER, 2025 USING A TRIMBLE R750 / R12i BASE/ROVER
CONFIGURATION. THE RESULTING ERROR MEETS OR EXCEEDS THE MINIMUM REQUIRED STANDARDS FOR A
SUBDIVISION SURVEY AS ESTABLISHED BY THE VERMONT BOARD OF LAND SURVEYORS.

4. ALL EVIDENCE OF MONUMENTATION FOUND ON THE SURVEYED PREMISES IS SHOWN HEREON.
MONUMENTATION FOUND IS CONSIDERED TO BE IN GOOD AND STABLE CONDITION UNLESS OTHERWISE
NOTED.  ALL IRON PIPE DIMENSIONS PERTAIN TO INSIDE DIAMETER UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

5. THE RIGHT OF WAY WIDTH FOR VT ROUTE 116 IS VARIABLE AND BASED ON DATA EXTRACTED FROM A PLAN
ENTITLED "BRISTOL-STARKSBORO BART 'B', PROJECT F NO 171 (6), SHEET 28 OF 110 SHEETS" OBTAINED
FROM THE STATE OF VERMONT RIGHT OF WAY SPATIAL DATA HUB, PREVIOUS SURVEYS OF RECORD, AND
MONUMENTATION FOUND. ALL REBARS SET ARE AT THE LIMIT OF A 3-ROD (49.5') WIDE SEGMENT OF SAID
RIGHT OF WAY.

6. ALL AREA CALCULATIONS ARE BASED ON THE EDGE OF THE RIGHTS OF WAY OF SAID ROAD AND NOT THE
CENTERLINE THEREOF.

PARCEL INFORMATION
OWNER: CRYSTAL L. KELLY
& BRADLEY A. BOSS
VOL. 126, PG. 522
SPAN: 615-193-10431
PARCEL ID: 10431

10523 VT Route 116, P.O.Box 133
Hinesburg, VT 05461
Telephone: (802) 482-2597

167 Main Street, P.O.Box 820
Enosburg Falls, VT 05450
Telephone: (802) 933-5168

BARNARD &
  GERVAIS, LLC

Land Surveying
  Water & Wastewater
     Environmental Consulting

SHEET 1 OF 1

PL-1

DRAWING NO.

TWO-LOT SUBDIVISION

SURVEY PLAT

FINAL LOCAL REVIEWPRELIMINARYSKETCH/CONCEPT

THESE PLANS WITH LATEST REVISIONS SHOULD ONLY BE USED FOR THE PURPOSE
SHOWN BELOW:

REVISIONS
DESCRIPTIONDATE BY

PROJECT NO.

25361

DATE:

01-14-2026

SCALE:

1" = 300', 1" = 150'

SURVEY:

DT, TW, TG

DRAWN:

AW, JG

CHECKED:

AW

DRAFT

RECEIVED FOR RECORD IN THE TOWN OF STARKSBORO

THIS ________________ DAY OF _______________________________, 20___

MAP BOOK# _________, PAGE#____________, SLIDE#___________

AT ___________________O'CLOCK _______________MINUTES ____M

AND RECORDED IN STARKSBORO, VERMONT

ATTEST____________________________________________________
                                                        TOWN CLERK

 CRYSTAL L. KELLY &

BRADLEY A. BOSS

793 VT ROUTE 116, STARKSBORO, VERMONT

LANDS OF

PROJECT

LOCATION

VT
 R

OU
TE

 11
6

ZONING DATA
DISTRICTS:
(ASRR) AGRICULTURAL, SCENIC & RURAL RESIDENTIAL
(FC) FORESTRY & CONSERVATION

ASRR DISTRICT MINIMUM STANDARDS:
LOT SIZE (RES) = 1/2 - 2 OR > 25 ACRES
LOT SIZE (NONRES) = 2 ACRES
DENSITY = 1 DU / 10 ACRES
FRONTAGE (< 2 AC) = 100'
FRONTAGE (2 TO < 5 AC) = 250'
FRONTAGE (5 TO < 10 AC) = 350'
FRONTAGE (> 10 AC) = 500'
SETBACKS:
   ROAD = 100' (CENTERLINE)
   SIDE (RES) = 20'
   SIDE (NONRES) = 50'
   REAR (RES) = 20'
   REAR (NONRES) = 50'

FC DISTRICT MINIMUM STANDARDS:
LOT SIZE (RES) = 1 ACRES
LOT SIZE (NONRES) = 5 ACRES
DENSITY = 1 DU / 25 ACRES
FRONTAGE (< 2 AC) = 100'
FRONTAGE (2 TO < 5 AC) = 150'
FRONTAGE (5 TO < 10 AC) = 200'
FRONTAGE (> 10 AC) = 500'
SETBACKS:
   ROAD = 75' (CENTERLINE)
   SIDE (RES) = 20'
   SIDE (NONRES) = 50'
   REAR (RES) = 20'
   REAR (NONRES) = 50'

PER TOWN OF STARKSBORO LAND USE AND DEVELOPMENT
REGULATIONS ADOPTED JANUARY 7, 2020.

PROJECT BOUNDARY LINES (SURVEYED)

ABUTTING BOUNDARY LINES

EXISTING EASEMENT / RIGHT OF WAY

REBAR FOUND

IRON PIPE FOUND

ABOVE GRADE

BELOW GRADE

NOW OR FORMERLY

UTILITY POLE & OVERHEAD WIRESohw ohw

LEGEND

N/F

B.G.

A.G.

IPF

RBF

HILLSBORO RD

MEADOWLARK LN

W SHALLOW WELL

7. ALL REBARS SET ARE 5/8" WITH A CAP STAMPED A.W.W. VTLS 0132699 AND ALL MONUMENTATION FOUND IS AS
NOTED.

8. UNAUTHORIZED ALTERATIONS AND/OR MODIFICATIONS TO THIS PLAN SHALL INVALIDATE ANY AND ALL
CERTIFICATIONS MADE BY BARNARD & GERVAIS, LLC AND FURTHER ANY PARTIES INVOLVED IN SAID
ALTERATIONS AND/OR MODIFICATIONS SHALL BE HELD LIABLE AND MAY BE PROSECUTED IN A COURT OF LAW.

9. BARNARD AND GERVAIS, LLC MAKES NO WARRANTIES THAT ALL ENCUMBRANCES THAT EXIST FOR THE
SUBJECT PARCEL ARE SHOWN HEREON.  ADDITIONAL ENCUMBRANCES THAT MAY EXIST INCLUDE, BUT ARE NOT
LIMITED TO, WETLANDS, WELL AND SEPTIC ISOLATION ZONES, HAZARDOUS WASTE SITES AND/OR BROWNFIELDS
WITH ASSOCIATED ISOLATION ZONES.

10. THIS SUBDIVISION PLAT IS NOT INTENDING TO CREATE ANY EASEMENTS OTHER THAN THOSE SPECIFICALLY
LISTED AND DESCRIBED HEREON. ANY DRIVES, PATHS, TRAILS OR OTHER AMENITIES SHOWN HEREON ARE
CONSIDERED PRIVATE UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

11. BOUNDARY LINES, DISTANCES, AND ACREAGES SHOW HEREON AS APPROXIMATE ARE BASED ON SURVEY
REFERENCES 1, 2, & 3 AND AVAILABLE TAX MAP DATA AND ARE FOR REFERENCE PURPOSES ONLY. BARNARD &
GERVAIS, LLC. MAKES NO WARRANTIES TO ANY BOUNDARIES OTHER THAN THOSE SHOWN AS BEING SURVEYED.

RBTS REBAR SET

PROJECT BOUNDARY LINES (APPROX.)

PROPOSED BOUNDARY LINES

PROPOSED BUILDING ENVELOPE

INSET DETAIL

CALCULATED CORNER

N23°58'07"E 192.26'

S65°22'55"E 14.28'

S64°07'12"E 25.00'
N25°52'48"E 39.70'

N25°52'48"E 26.00'

N64°07'12"W 69.00'

BEARING DISTANCE

LINE TABLE

LINE

L1

L2

L3

L4

L5

L6

L7

N25°26'17"E 135.10'

N64°07'12"W 8.25'L8

THIS FINAL PLAT HAS BEEN APPROVED IN DECISION 26-DRB-02SD BY THE
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD OF THE TOWN OF STARKSBORO, VERMONT;
THIS ____ DAY OF _______________, 20___, SUBJECT TO THE REQUIREMENTS
AND CONDITIONS OF SAID DECISION.
SIGNED THIS ____ DAY OF _______________, 20___.
BY ______________________________, DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD CHAIR

0

1LOT 2 = 2.0 AC. (ASRR)

LOT 1 = 25.1 AC. (FC)

PROPOSED PARCELS BUILDING RIGHTS USED

13Ñ CALCULATED USING 

TOTAL # OF BUILDING RIGHTS

LOT 1

EXISTING PARCEL

13Ñ

0

BUILDING RIGHTS REMAINING

TOWN OF STARKSBORO BUILDING RIGHTS TABLE

IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 351.D OF THE TOWN OF STARKSBORO, VERMONT LAND USE AND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS
ZONING BYLAWS EFFECTIVE 1/28/2020, THE TOTAL NUMBER OF BUILDING RIGHTS ON THE PARCEL PRIOR TO SUBDIVISION SHALL

BE ALLOCATED AMONG THE RESULTING LOTS. CALCULATIONS OF THE BUILDING RIGHTS WERE MADE USING THE ACREAGES
SHOWN HEREON AND ZONING DISTRICT DENSITY REQUIREMENTS STATED IN THE AFOREMENTIONED ZONING REGULATIONS. IT

SHOULD BE NOTED THAT THE ACREAGE OF LOT 1 IS APPROXIMATE AND THEREFORE THE NUMBER OF BUILDING RIGHTS ON
SAID LOT 1 ARE NOT WARRANTED BY BARNARD & GERVAIS, LLC. IT SHOULD BE FURTHER NOTED THAT THESE BUILDING RIGHTS

ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE IN THE EVENT OF AMENDMENTS TO THE CURRENT DENSITY REQUIREMENTS.

& 126.1 AC. (ASRR)
APPROXIMATE ACREAGES

S13°40'44"E 387.40'

S89°27'45"W 126.36'

N66°38'10"W 110.10'

N10°24'25"E 65.11'

N10°14'47"W 88.77'

N18°21'52"E 87.31'

N5°41'09"E 74.90'

N76°31'25"E 107.88'

L9

L10

L11

L12

L13

L14

L15

L16

IRELAND RD

N25°52'54"E 15.56'L17

REVISED LOT 6 BOUNDARY LINES & BUILDING ENVELOPE04-13-2026 JG

RECEIVED
04/13/2026

Town of Starksboro

zoningadministrator
Text Box
Exhibit I



zoningadministrator
Received Stamp

zoningadministrator
Text Box
2/26/2026

zoningadministrator
Text Box
Exhibit J



zoningadministrator
Text Box
Exhibit J



zoningadministrator
Text Box
Exhibit J



zoningadministrator
Text Box
Exhibit J



zoningadministrator
Text Box
Exhibit K



zoningadministrator
Text Box
Exhibit K



zoningadministrator
Text Box
Exhibit K



zoningadministrator
Text Box
Exhibit K



zoningadministrator
Text Box
Exhibit K



zoningadministrator
Text Box
Exhibit K



Bradley Boss & Crystal Kelly 
Two-Lot Subdivision 

793 VT Route 116 
Starksboro, Vermont 

 
 
 

Responses to Preliminary Hearing Decision 
 
 In accordance to the items presented in the Preliminary determinations section of the March 
26, 2026 decision, the following responses are being submitted: 
 
 

1. The proposed subdivision is being resubmitted as a Planned Unit Development (PUD). 
 

2. The applicant has discussed the historic pit usage with the current lessee and historic 
usage of the sand pit is not determined. 
 

3. The applicant has met with the VTrans representative for this area, and VTrans 
permitting for the existing access is being determined. 
 

4. An emergency vehicle turn-around is provided at the entrance to the existing sand pit.  
The location of the pit entrance is shown on the site plans, and a shared maintenance 
agreement of the pit entrance/ emergency vehicle turn-around can be provided at the 
final hearing. 
 

5. See attached email from Zapata Courage. 
 

6. The total amount of new impervious surface area being added is 7,350± SF.  Because 
the new impervious surface area is less than 10,000 SF, a stormwater management plan 
is not required. 

 
  

zoningadministrator
Received Stamp

zoningadministrator
Text Box
4/8/2026

zoningadministrator
Text Box
Exhibit L



Page 1 of 2 

 

Town of Starksboro                     Zoning Administrator 

PO Box 91, Starksboro VT 05487              zoning@starksborovt.org 

 

 

April 17, 2026 

 

Brad Boss and Crystal Kelly 

422 Hayden Hill Road E. 

Hinesburg, VT 05461 

 

CC: Jason Barnard, Barnard & Gervais 

 

RE: Notification of incomplete #26-DRB-02SD Final Plan Review application, 

Parcel 10431, 793 VT Route 116 

 

Dear Brad, Crystal, and Jason, 

 

We’ve received your application for a final plan review hearing for application 26-DRB-02SD on April 13th 

and note that the 26-DRB-02PUD application has been withdrawn. 

 

I’ve reviewed whether the submittals provided on 4/13/2026 address the preliminary determinations 

noted in the DRB’s Notice of Findings and Preliminary Determinations dated May 26, 2026.  In doing so, 

I made the assumption that the attached Response to Preliminary Hearing Decision received on 4/8/2026 as 

part of the 26-DRB-02PUD application applies to this application.  This response should be updated and 

resubmitted as necessary to reflect the discussion below.    

  

In my review of the application materials plus the responses noted above I find the following with 

regards to the Preliminary Determination Items: 

  

Item 1: The application has been revised to comply with Section 252.B minimum lot size. 

  

Item 2: The application does not provide the information requested by the DRB to determine if 

the pre-existing pit is conforming, or non-conforming and subject to Section 122.E.  The 

applicant should indicate whether more information will be provided prior to the hearing, or 

whether they understand that the DRB will either deem the application incomplete at the 

hearing, or make the above determination without assistance from the applicant. 

  

Item 3: A letter of intent or a permit from VTrans for the Rt. 116 access work is not provided.  I 

understand from verbal communication with Brad that the site visit by the State has taken place 

and that a permit is in the works.  The permit must be provided prior to the hearing date to 

avoid the application being deemed incomplete during the hearing. 

  

Item 4: The revised site plan does not indicate the emergency turnaround.  This was indicated on the 

PUD site plan, and must be indicated on the revised site plan. If there will be a shared road 

maintenance agreement, it must be provided before the hearing date to avoid the application 

being deemed incomplete at the hearing.  If there will not be an agreement, the Town will 

zoningadministrator
Text Box
Exhibit M



26-DRB-02SD Final Plan Review, ZA notice of incomplete application April 17, 2026 
Boss-Kelly Parcel 10431, 793 VT Route 116 

Page 2 of 2 

 

assume that the Owner takes all responsibility for maintenance of the road to the residence and 

to the sand and gravel pit. 

                  

Item 5: Although no information is provided on the State wetlands review in this new application, an 

update to the April 1, 2026 email from Zapata Courage to Barnard & Gervais provided in the 

26-DRB-02PUD application, including the work Barnard & Gervais noted would be confirmed 

must be provided before the hearing date to avoid the application being deemed incomplete at 

the hearing.              

  

Item 6: I’m assuming that the stormwater information provided in the April 6th response remains valid.  

If so, this information should be included on the final site plan.   

  

Other items noted: 

  

1. Please confirm that you wish us to include Waste Water Permit WW-9-3425 (Exhibit J in the 

preliminary hearing) with this application.  This permit may have required amending due to the 

change in Lot 6 configuration. If an amended permit is not provided prior to the hearing, the 

DRB will determine whether the application is complete. 

2. Narrative bullet item “Natural Features”:  I believe the last sentence of the paragraph is 

intended to say “all proposed and existing infrastructure”. 

3. Information on how power and telephone utilities will be run across the wetlands is requested 

by the ZA and must be provided prior to the hearing date. 

  

Fees:  The previous fee paid for the 26-DRB-02SD preliminary hearing application covered this final 

hearing, so no fees are due until recording. 

  

Regards, 

 
  

Stephen Rooney 

Zoning Administrator 

Town of Starksboro 

Direct Line: 802-453-2768 

zoning@starksborovt.org 

Office Hours Mon & Tues 9am - 3:30pm 

 

Encl: Responses to 02-DRB-02SD Preliminary Hearing Decision 

included with application 02-DRB-02PUD. 

 

CC:  Ben Campbell, Chair, DRB 

 Evelyn Boardman, Vice Chair, DRB         

zoningadministrator
Text Box
Exhibit M



 BARNARD & GERVAIS, LLC  
Land Surveyors, Licensed Designers, Environmental Consultants 

www.barnardandgervais.com 
 

          Hinesburg: 10523 VT Route 116, P.O. Box 133, Hinesburg, VT 05461; Phone (802) 482-2597 
Enosburg Falls: 167 Main Street Suite 10, P.O Box 820, Enosburg Falls, VT 05450; Phone (802) 933-5168 
 
 

April 20, 2026 
 
Town of Starksboro 
Attn: Steve Rooney  
P.O. Box 91 
Starksboro, VT 05487 
 
Subject:   Bradley Boss & Crystal Kelly – Two-Lot Subdivision, 793 VT Route 116, Starksboro, VT 

– Response to Comments.  
 
Dear Steve: 
 
 I have reviewed your letter dated April 17, 2026, and provide the following responses. 
Based on the materials submitted with the initial application and the clarifications below, we believe 
the application meets the requirements to proceed with scheduling a hearing. Any additional 
materials, if warranted, will be provided during the DRB process and should not delay scheduling. 
 
Our responses are as follows: 
 
Item 1: Noted  
 
Item 2: Please find attached a letter from Benjamin Putman regarding the gravel pit. 
 
Item 3: This item is in process. The current access is existing and is being reviewed by VTRANS.  
 
Item 4: Please see the revised drawing attached. 
 
Item 5: Included below is correspondence with the state wetland ecologist, Zapata Courage. This 
applies to the subdivision. At the time this letter is dated, the Addison County Growing Season (ie. 
the window in which the state accepts wetland assessments) is not open yet. Once it is open, our 
Wetland specialist will assess the site. This information will be gathered and shared before the next 
hearing.  
 
Item 6: The stormwater information submitted on April 6 remains valid. 
 
Other items noted: 
 
The wastewater permit is applicable and will be a simple amendment.  
 
Addressed 
 
Power and telephone utilities will not cross wetlands; they will be constructed within the same 
footprint as the road. 
 
  

zoningadministrator
Received Stamp

zoningadministrator
Text Box
4/20/2026

zoningadministrator
Text Box
Exhibit N



 BARNARD & GERVAIS, LLC  
Land Surveyors, Licensed Designers, Environmental Consultants 

www.barnardandgervais.com 
 

 

          Hinesburg: 10523 VT Route 116, P.O. Box 133, Hinesburg, VT 05461; Phone (802) 482-2597 
Enosburg Falls: 167 Main Street Suite 10, P.O Box 820, Enosburg Falls, VT 05450; Phone (802) 933-5168 
 
 

 
At this time, the application materials are sufficient to support scheduling of the DRB hearing. We 
respectfully request that the application be advanced accordingly. Any remaining items can be 
addressed as part of the hearing process.        
            
   
Sincerely, 

         
 
        Jason S. Barnard  
        Licensed Designer #0126179 
 
 
 
c: Bradley Boss & Crystal Kelly 

zoningadministrator
Text Box
Exhibit N



 

 

Benjamin W. Putnam, Esq.  

Amy R. Menard, Esq.  

Judson E. Hescock, Esq.  

 

O ne C ross S treet, M iddlebury , Vermont 05753    pmlawvt.com    tel 802.388.7966    fax  802.388 .9713  

 

April 16, 2026 

 

 

Development Review Board 

Town of Starksboro 

2849 Route 116 

Starksboro, VT 05487 

 

Re: Crystal Kelly and Bradley Boss Two-Lot Subdivision, 793 Route 116, Starksboro 

 

Dear Members of the DRB: 

 

 I represent Crystal Kelly and Bradley Boss, the applicants in the above matter.  Ms. Kelly and 

Mr. Boss have asked me to provide my opinion as to whether the DRB can impose a condition on the 

subdivision approval requiring them to gather and report historical information on the pre-existing 

gravel pit located on a portion of their property. 

 

 Ms. Kelly and Mr. Boss are seeking to subdivide their 153.2-acre parcel into two lots of 151.2 

acres and 2.0 acres, in order to allow the 151.2-acre lot to be developed with a future residence.  The 

application does not propose any expansion, alteration, or change in use of the gravel pit.   

 

I have reviewed the Starksboro Land Use Development Regulations, with a particular focus on 

Section 350 (Subdivision and PUD Standards) and Section 426 (Subdivision Review).  The standards 

deal with the layout and configuration of the proposed subdivision.  I have not been able to locate any 

provisions that would provide a basis for requiring landowners to report on historical usage of a facility 

such as a gravel pit.  As noted above, the pit on the Kelly/Boss property is not proposed to be expanded 

or altered in any way.  The existence of the pit is irrelevant to the matter before the DRB (the proposed 

division of the property into two lots). 

 

Based on the foregoing, it is my opinion that the DRB must base any conditions on the 

enumerated standards in the Regulations, and does not have authority to impose a condition requiring 

the applicants to obtain information and report on past or current usage of the gravel pit. 

 

Thank you for your attention to this matter. 

 

       Sincerely, 

        
cc: Crystal Kelly and Bradley Boss   Benjamin W. Putnam, Esq. 

       benj@pmlawvt.com 

zoningadministrator
Received Stamp

zoningadministrator
Text Box
4/20/2026

mailto:benj@pmlawvt.com
zoningadministrator
Text Box
Exhibit O



���������	
�������
��
��
�����	
���������

������������� ��!��"�#�""���$���%&�''#����
����
�

(�������
��
��)*+,-./0+1.+12+.23415+6,78-9: ;42<�=>1�?<�@A@B�+C�?DE@�FG
H-D�I8-CC�J+K41�),8-CC/0+1.+12+.23415+6,78-9:

I8-CC<

L414�6,�CM4�49+6N�O1-9�P+>+C+7

Q+,-.

RRRRRRRRRR�S-1T+1242�94,,+34�RRRRRRRRR
S1-9D�U�V
��	!�W�X����)P+>+C+7Y-Z1+34/5419-.C73-5:
[+C4D�;42<�=>1�?<�@A@B�+C�?D\E]FG
IZ0*48CD�̂_D�;;R̀Ra\@ER@<�@A@BRAAaa�b̀a�cHR??BRIC+1K,0-1-
H-D�Q+,-.�J+1.+12�)*+,-./0+1.+12+.23415+6,78-9:
Y8D�0+06.8-a/39+5C7.4C�)0+06.8-a/39+5C7.4C:<�81d,C+N7K4NNdbb/39+6N78-9�)81d,C+N7K4NNdbb/39+6N78-9:<�[414K
HM60-24+Z�)2414K/0+1.+12+.23415+6,78-9:

L6�Q+,-.<

HM+.K,�O-1�,4.26.3�CM4,4�-5417�I-�+�8-Z>N4�-O�CM6.3,D

e7�HM4�Z,4�-O�CM4�+884,,�1-+2�C-�CM4�31+54N�>6C�8+.�04�Z,42�+,�+�21654T+d�T6CM-ZC�+�T4CN+.2�>4196C<�,6.84�.-
T624.6.3�-O�6C�6,�.484,,+1d7�fO�CM414�6,�+�8ZN541C�6.�>N+84<�6C�8+.�04�14>N+842<�9+6.C+6.42<�+.2�14>+6142�6.�6C,�4g6,C6.3
O--C>16.C�T6CM-ZC�+�T4CN+.2�>4196C7�h>,6i6.3�9+d�14jZ614�+�̂436,C1+C6-.�O-197

@7�k4,<�M+54�[414K�8-.O619�CM+C�CM4�0Z6N26.3�4.54N->4�.4+1�CM4�31+54N�>6C�6,�-ZC,624�T4CN+.2,l0ZOO41,<
a7�=N,-�M+54�[414K�8-.O619�CM+C�CM4�>1->-,42�T4NN�N-8+C6-.�O-1�m-C�B�6,�-ZC,624�-O�T4CN+.2,�+.2�0ZOO417

f�T6NN�.-C�.442�+�,6C4�56,6C�Z.N4,,�,-94CM6.3�6,�14+NNd�OZ.Kd�-ZC�CM4147

�

FN4+,4�14O414.84�n�"�#�""�����$���%&�''#����
����
������oV�V
	�����V�������������V���p���X
�q	���Xr	��	s

�

YM441,<

P+>

tuvwx�yz{|}�~z�}z����*+,-./0+1.+12+.23415+6,78-9�

����x����{�z����z���������������������

�vx��|��z�����z�z�z��P+>+C+7Y-Z1+34/5419-.C73-5�

��x�0+06.8-a/39+5C7.4C��81d,C+N7K4NNdbb/39+6N78-9�� ���¡���¢£|��z���2414K/0+1.+12+.23415+6,78-9�

�¤¥¦���x�§���̈©��©©�ª��«¢�z¬|}�¢}�­�z�¡{£|�|�®¢������|̄ �̄}����©��«z}�{����̄¢���©©°±°���²°���­�£̄ ¢{{¢|}�

³́ y°́~µ�°¶́��­

�

·̧ &·¹º»¼��·º½·¹��½�������X	�������p�	�����
��r�������r�����V�r	���¾�V�
	�����¿	������
V����p	��	��	
�

À--2�G-1.6.3�P+>+C+<

�

zoningadministrator
Received Stamp

zoningadministrator
Text Box
4/20/2026

zoningadministrator
Text Box
Exhibit P



����������	��
���
��������
����������	����	�	����������������������������
���	�����
���	��������	��������������������������
������	����	���
��������������������	�������

�

�������������
����	�
�	
��
������	���	��������
���������
�����������
�
���	��������������	������	��������������	��������
	����������������������� ��
�����!�����
�
	�������	��	��
������

�	��������������
�������!���
���������	���������������
��
�����������	����
������
�������"#�$�����%�������
������	�
����
���������"#�������
�������
��	�
	����

�

#�
�	
��
������!�����
��������	��
�������	����������������
�������!�����������	��
������!����
���	�������
��������������
	������	���
������
����
��������
	����

���	�&��	�
������	����������	��������"��	������	�����
�����
��
������������������������
���������'�	���	��������


���������(����������	�)�����������
�������������������

���������
	����
�������������
�	������*������������
�����������������'�	���	�������������������	�������������
��
����

�������	�����������������������
�������	������

�

������������������������
����������������������������������
��	���
�������������
�������+������������	������	�������������
����&���������

�

�����#�
�	
��

�

,����

�

*�������-���.��%/%0����12.34�5��"#�6�785'�7�����
��9�"#�785'7�����
�:��	�����
��;��	���2

+<=�8=�'*�"*��#=+<>����������������������
������
����������������	�����	����
�	���������	�������������	������
����	�����������	��������
�
���	����	��	��������>��������������
���	���7��������	���	���������	
��
��������+�	���
"���
���	�����	��	����������	�&��	����������
���	��������	����	�����	����5�����	��������������./6�����(��)������������

	�&��	����������
���	���������������
���
	�����������������������������������	�����
����	�
	�
��
���	�����������������
	������������������������
����	��	�����	�	��	���������������
�������$��������������
����
�������������������	��������

��	������"�����	�����	�����	���	��������
�?��8�����������
�������	�����	�!��������
�������	��	������
���
����7�����


��������������������
��	��������	���������������	�����������
���	�������������
�	���������������
����	��������������	
�	��������>����������
�����������������������������	��	���������	����	�2������2@@
�����	�����
��@
����	���
@������
�@����@�
@������
6����������6�����7�����
�����
�	����	�����
����������������
�	��
�����
	����

�������(������������	���A�*��)��>��	�8�����'���	����7�����
��=����
������������
��������������������������������������,���
������������&��	������
����������2������2@@��	�������������@
@">=B

���,���
����
����	�������������	�������
�	������
����������

CDEFG�HIJIK�LM�NKOPQRI�SJTIK�SJIKO�URTIJVV�WKOIT�X�"#�77�������$�	��:��	�����
��Y

Z[\]G�̂_̀OTaJbc�dKeÒJOb�fc�ghgi�gjffjhf�kl

mEG�nop�q�SHlr�SKIVJRaT�X�"#�785'7�����
�:��	�����
��Y

Zstu[v]G�SS�nwwVxyJzQR�xR�HIJO{TeQOQ�|xI_�OKyQPPKRaKa�SKIVJRaT�kKOPxIj�SSq}q~�gfqgc�H̀ePxTTxQRj����q

��ogq��~kH

�

���	��������
������+�	����"���
���	�#�������
�
���7�����
��+�	����

8���������2���,6��"%6=��+8
+�	����"����	2�77616��%.6%
+	�����2��	�
�����������$	���������������6<���8��
�������

zoningadministrator
Text Box
Exhibit P



���������	
��
������	������������������	�����������������	�������	��������������
��	������ ��
�!���"�#	�	��
�����	�����
����$��	����%������&'#���		$���
(���)�$����)��$��	�����
�����������(�����������	��#�����
(���
����*����
(�������
�����
�������#���
�	
'������
�(�	�
��%����%����������$��
����	������%�����#���
�	
'����������	%�%�����+���,	���-�+���.����
������	�	��
(����%	'�	����#������	
��	���������%	�/�0�
�%���������
1�	�����2�������������
��	������ �!���"�#	�	
2������
��3$�����#�#�
�	�4($����
��5���������"������4($�����	$
6	�$�!�#$������3$��������	
4#��
����
�(��������	$
��������������������

�

''

!�
������7�

�

8��	
�,��
���

9���
��������(
��

1��/:;�0�&:�'����

���	
4#��
����
�(��������	$

�

<))����=	�����
+	
�������	�(��6�����7�:�;;���$���
������;;���$�

''
!�
������7�

8��	
�,��
���
9���
��������(
��
1��/:;�0�&:�'����
���	
4#��
����
�(��������	$

<))����=	�����
+	
�������	�(��6�����7�:�;;���$���
������;;���$�

>?@ABCDEFFGHIJJK�CLCBCLMNOPQRST
�& :.

zoningadministrator
Text Box
Exhibit P


